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FORM C

Required Company Disclosures

Purpose of This Form

A Company that wants to raise money using Regulation Crowdfunding must give certain information to
prospective Investors, so Investors will have a basis for making an informed decision. The Securities and
Exchange Commission, or SEC, has issued regulations at 17 CFR §227.201 listing the information
companies must provide for Regulation Crowdfunding. This form — Form C — is the form used to provide
the information required.

Each heading below corresponds to a section of the SEC’s regulations for Reg CF. In some cases, we’ve
provided instructions for the Company completing this form.

As discussed further below, we are simultaneously conducting offerings under 17 CFR §230.506(c) and
SEC Regulation S. We are using this form or a version of this form for those offerings as well.

§227.201(a) — Basic Information About the Company

Name of Company The Freeman Berkshires, LLC

State of Organization (not necessarily where the
Company operates, but the State in which the
Company was formed) DE

Date Company Was Formed (from the Company’s
Certificate of Incorporation) September 19, 2019

Corporation
X Limited liability company

Kind of Entity (Check One) _____ Limited Partnership
391 E. Las Colinas Blvd, 130-331
Street Address Irving, TX 75039
https://sharedestates.fund/freemanberkshire
Website Address S

§227.201(b) — Directors and Officers of the Company

Company Instructions

This question asks for information about each person who is an officer and director of the Company. By “officer,”

we mean a President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer, Comptroller, or Chief Accounting

Officer.

e Include anyone who serves in the role of an officer or director even if he or she doesn’t have the title.

e If your Company is a limited liability company, include any individual who is a manager or an officer. If your LLC
is managed by its members, include all members.

e If your Company is a general partnership, include any individual who is a general partner or an officer.

e Include officers and directors of the SPV if you are using one (and if they are different).



Person #1

Name Daniel Dus

Position: Managing Partner of
Shared Estates Asset Fund, GP, the
Manager of, Shared Estates Asset

All positions with the Company and How Fund 1, LLC, the Manager of The How Long: Since
Long for Each Position Freeman Berkshires, LLC inception
Business Experience During Last Three Years | Real estate development and operations; solar project
(Brief Description) execution
Principal Occupation During Last Three Years | Head of Renewables Business, Adani Solar USA, LLC
Has this Person Been Employed by Anyone _ X Yes
Else During the Last Three Years? __ No

Business: Peck
If Yes, List the Name of the Other Name: Independent board of Company
Employer(s) and its (their) Principal Business | directors Holdings, Inc.

§227.201(c) — Each Person Who Owns 20% or More of the Voting Power

Company Instructions

This question asks for the name of each person who owns 20% or more of the voting power of the Company.

This should be based on current ownership at the time you’re filling in this form, not based on the ownership that

will exist after your offering.

e |f your Company is a corporation, make the 20% calculation based on who has the right to vote for the election
of directors.

e [If your Company is a limited liability company managed by its members, make the 20% calculation based on who
has the right to make decisions.

e If your Company is a limited liability company managed by one or more managers, the manager(s) typically hold
the “voting power.”

e If your Company is a limited partnership, the general partner(s) typically hold the “voting power.”

Daniel Dus is the Managing Partner of Shared Estates Asset Fund, GP, which is the
Manager of Shared Estates Asset Fund 1, LLC, which is the Manager of the
Name Company. Hence, Mr. Dus controls the Company.

Name

§227.201(d) — The Company’s Business and Business Plan
About the Vision

Shared Estates Asset Fund is a vertically integrated, carbon-neutral real estate redevelopment company
and owner-operator of luxury estates for short-term rental. Industry experts say “The sharing economy,



including short-term rentals, is growing fast.”! Shared assets are accessible peer-to-peer (P2P) via a
community based online platform, such as VRBO, HomeAway or AirBNB.2 34

The Shared Estates Asset Fund, GP (the “Sponsor”) is focusing its acquisitions in the Berkshires of Western
Massachusetts, which offer a rare, robust year-round vacation rental market.® ® This is a region with a
unique inventory of luxury estates from the 1800s and early 1900s. The area enjoyed an industrial and
cultural heyday in the 1800s and early 1900s, but lost tens of thousands of jobs as major industrial
companies like General Electric shuttered offices and manufacturing centers. As a result, there are many
estates that are dramatically under-utilized, haven’t been renovated in decades and are even under threat
of structural failure. The Sponsor plans to bring a number of these luxury and historic properties into the
reach of middle class family gatherings, at a lower cost per person than standard hotel rooms. Through
rehabilitation of historic properties from a vibrant past, creation of sustainable jobs and fueling the robust
local tourist economy, the Fund is driving revitalization of this beautiful rural County.

This plan outlines an investment opportunity into the next property that the Sponsor plans to purchase,
The Freeman Berkshires. The PLAYHOUSE (850 Summer Street, Lee, Massachusetts), the #1 vacation
rental in this market, was developed, owned and operated by the management team since 2014 and
recently sold at a profit.’

In addition, all of the properties that the Sponsor renovates will be made carbon neutral through
procurement of renewable energy credits to offset each property’s energy consumption profile. Building
materials will be reclaimed materials wherever possible. No single-use amenities, such as plastic cups, will
be offered. Other examples of energy conscious actions to be taken include installation of high-efficiency
windows and plantings of native and edible landscaping.

Investors will be offered a preferred return on their investment and additional specified returns based
on overall performance of property operations and ultimate sale. The Sponsor plans to contribute not
less than 10% of equity capital, to be treated the same as Investor capital. Traditional banks are not
always eager to finance projects like this, considering the location “too rural” or the business model too
new. Therefore the Sponsor creatively seeks alternatives, such as investment crowdfunding or seller-
financed loans.

About the Project

This plan outlines the rehabilitation of a property located at 46 Bow Wow Rd, Egremont in Massachusetts
(the “Property” or “Project”).® The Property will be renamed The Freeman Berkshires, in tribute to

*https://knowledge.wharton.upenn.edu/article/short-term-rentals-the-transformation-in-real-estate-and-travel-
set-to-check-in/

2 https://www.vrbo.com/

3 https://www.expediagroup.com/brands/homeaway/

4 https://www.airbnb.com/

> https://www.travelandleisure.com/travel-guide/berkshires

® https://travel.usnews.com/The_Berkshires_MA/

" https://www.vrbo.com/4258796ha

8 https://goo.gl/maps/xyMKqVbteMtvGo6M6



Elizabeth Freeman. Elizabeth was a Stockbridge, Massachusetts woman, abused by her "master's" wife,
and the first African American slave to sue and win her freedom under the Massachusetts constitution.’
The Sponsor plans to contribute a percentage of profits to The Elizabeth Freeman Center, a local non-
profit working to end the cycle of domestic abuse and violence. A series of sculptures by local artists in a
garden on the Property will pay tribute to Elizabeth as well.

The Sponsor has formed The Freeman Berkshires, LLC (the “Company”) to purchase the Property and
conduct the renovations. The Sponsor has also formed Shared Estates Asset Fund 1, LLC (the “Manager”)
to act as the Manager of the Company (and which the Sponsor will manage). The property is a five-
bedroom, five-and-a-half bathroom, 11,400 square foot estate, on forty-one acres with tennis courts and
pond. Rehabilitation work is planned to maintain the residential use and to establish the Property as a
leading short term luxury rental space in the Berkshire County tourist economy. Several key focus areas
will be targeted for improvement:

e The addition of two or three bedrooms (within the existing footprint in the basement floor and
main floor);
The modernization of the kitchen and all fixtures;
Aesthetic improvements and updates to the grounds, IT and the addition of an in-ground pool
and significant outdoor patios as well as repairing the existing patios and metalwork.

All construction work will be executed by a Massachusetts Licensed General Contractor, Jason Dus
Construction. All work will be performed in accordance with code requirements and construction industry
best-practices. The Sponsor team has executed more than $1 billion of construction projects in over 17
states nationwide.

The Property is just over 100 miles from both Boston and New York City. It is roughly ten minutes from
downtown Great Barrington and Egremont, less than ten minutes from Mt. Washington State and East
Mountain State Forest and their extensive hiking trails.° 1* 12 Bash Bish Falls and Catamount Ski Area are
also close by.'* * Harman Marsh Pond is onsite.

The managers have already purchased, renovated, owned and operated a shared estate property, known
as the Playhouse. The Playhouse is a 7,000 square foot estate situated on 220 acres in Berkshire County.
It has been ranked the #1 most booked and most reviewed rental on VRBO in Berkshire County, out of
over 500 available properties. This property was acquired by the managers for $340,000, renovated and
sold for $1.299 million in October 2020, just over three years after the renovations were completed. See
Exhibit K - A Case Study.

https://www.npr.org/2020/02/27/809723362/in-the-1700s-an-enslaved-massachusetts-woman-sued-for-her-
freedom-and-won

10 https://berkshires.org/member/downtown-great-barrington-cultural-district/

1 https://www.google.com/search?q=egremont,+ma&source=Inms&tbm=isch&sa=X&ved=2ahUKEwiNitqt_c3rAh
V6IHIEHUUWAX8Q_AU0A30ECCAQBQ&biw=1346&bih=867

12 https://www.alltrails.com/parks/us/massachusetts/mount-washington-state-forest

13 https://www.alltrails.com/trail/us/massachusetts/bash-bish-falls-trail

1 https://catamountski.com/



This is the plan for the Freeman Berkshires as well. Once renovation is completed and the property is
operational and stabilized, the Managers will begin the process of finding a buyer. However, there is no
guarantee that the Property will sell as quickly. This is a unique property and a precise timeline for sale is
unknown. For that reason, while we are projecting a sale within 5 years, we have also included a return
calculation for 10 years. See “About the Return” for a comparison of potential return to investors if the
Property is sold in five years versus 10.

The Company plans to offer investors a 15% discount to the nightly rate at The Freeman Berkshires
property for up to seven nights per year; If the investor lives in Berkshire County, the Company plans to
offer them a little more with a 20% discount to the nightly rate. This extra discount affirms our
commitment to the local community and earning local business.

About the renovation

The original section of the estate was built in the 1800s with an Adirondack Lodge layout, and a large red-
brick addition was added later, increasing the property to over 11,000 square feet. The rehabilitation used
expensive, high-end, materials, including imported marbles, hardwoods and giant pine. However, the
Property is in need of a thorough update as outlined in the following plan.

There are no major structural issues with the Property. All of the work planned is focused on decreasing
operating expenses or improving the appeal of the Property for the target market of high-end luxury short
term rentals. Corrective measures recommended in a home inspection report will be addressed in the
planned construction activities to ensure the integrity of the building.

Two unfinished rooms in the basement are planned to be refinished to the same level of quality as the
rest of the home, including the installation of hardwood floors. The main floor office will be converted to
a bedroom as well with the goal of creating three additional bedrooms if permitted.

Heating and cooling, handlers and zone equipment are fully functional, in good shape, and will remain as-
is. Equipment controls are all expected to be web-enabled. If any added capacity is needed for the new
bedroom additions or otherwise, new mini-split units will be installed. A variety of insulation
improvements may also be completed, including replacement of any single pane glass windows and doors
if applicable. Some minor soffit or trim repairs may be required.

The garage space has a large, unfinished loft, approximately 1,000 square feet in size. We plan to convert
and refinish this area into a games room, and add mini-splits for localized heating and cooling. The rear
portion of the garage includes a large covered brick space which we plan to convert into an indoor-outdoor
space.

Aesthetic Improvements

Although the kitchen and all bathrooms are fully functional, aesthetic improvements are necessary. In
order to improve the modern look and feel of bathrooms, we plan to replace all fixtures.

Planned kitchen improvements include all new high-end appliances. Woodwork will be sanded and
refinished with clear-coats or Scandinavian whitewash where applicable.



Selective repainting of both the interior, all white, including recaulking and restoration is anticipated. A
light lime white-wash of the red exterior brick followed by sand-blasting is planned to create a rustic,
antique mansion aesthetic. We expect to install original art pieces to complete all rooms. Luxurious beds
will be selected for each room, along with day beds in some of the gathering spaces.

Grounds, Pool, IT and Outdoor Spaces

We are planning to rehabilitate all landscaping, and additionally to create a 3,000 square foot English-
style, labeled organic English kitchen and flower garden which will be replanted annually, and produce
from which will be included in welcome baskets. New landscaping plantings are expected to augment
existing beds throughout, and additions made around the road frontage, garage, parking areas and
entryways. Additional parking will be added if possible. Columns are planned to enhance the entrance
and possibly gate-restricted access as well. The tennis court needs to be completely renovated and we
are planning a large bluestone patio in the rear yard. In addition, a new luxury in-ground pool with lounge
area is planned for along with attendant outdoor furniture.

We also plan to add a new pond board-walk and dock with a small boat-house in order to facilitate pond
access and provide for a pond- side sitting and photos area.

The Company plans to build a trellis and plant two to three hundred grape vines to establish a micro-
vineyard on a portion of the parcel for photo opportunities and grapes will be added to the welcome
baskets in-season.

We plan to renovate the existing stone patios with metal work and also to expand them to accommodate
a large outdoor grill area,outdoor dining tables and cocktail tables. A large decorative greenhouse will
likely be built to provide additional indoor/outdoor spaces.

IT improvements are core to the renovation. Web-enabled flatscreens and high-end wireless-integrated
smart-speakers are planned throughout, in all bedrooms and shared spaces. Web-enabled light bulbs are
also planned in each bedroom. Security systems will include video at each main entry door. It’s likely that
two or three internet hubs will be required with multiple repeaters / signal-boosters. Internet signal will
be available across the main portion of the Property. Dedicated tablets with all associated software are
planned to be available in all main rooms.

The General Partners include a licensed Massachusetts General Contractor, Jason Dus, and will self-
perform most of the related work. Some specialty trades will be subcontracted to leading local vendors.

A detailed project budget can be reviewed on Exhibit A.
About the finances

The acquisition price of the Property is $1,600,000. The Company expects to finance the purchase with
$80,000 in cash, and $1,520,000 in seller financing. Seller financing has been obtained at 5% APR,
amortizing on a 30-year schedule. Closing costs, including the initial $80,000 cash outlay, and all of the
renovation work planned are expected to be fully financed through equity.

The total project cost, including anticipated renovations, acquisition, preparation for rental of the
property and carrying costs during construction is expected to be $2,410,000 - $1,520,000 will be provided



through the seller’s finance and the remainder, $890,000 through equity invested. While the Manager
hopes to raise $890,000 through this Offering, $390,000 to be invested by Sponsor on the same terms as
Investor Members, they have the required funds in equity in hand to fully capitalize the Project.

The managers have already purchased, renovated, owned and operated a shared estate property, known
as the Playhouse. The Playhouse is a 7,000 square foot estate situated on 220 acres in Berkshire County.
It has been ranked the #1, most booked and most reviewed rental on VRBO in Berkshire County, out of
55, available properties. This property was acquired by the managers for $340,000, renovated and sold
for $1.299 million in October 2020, three years after the renovations were completed.

This is the plan for the Freeman Berkshires as well. Once renovation is completed and the property is
operational and stabilized, the Managers will begin the process of finding a buyer. However, there is no
guarantee that the Property will sell as quickly. This is a unique property and a precise timeline for sale is
unknown. For that reason, while we are projecting a sale within 5 years, we have also included a return
calculation for 10 years. See “About the Return” for a comparison of potential return to investors if the
Property is sold in five years versus 10.

Annual operating expenses for the Property are expected to be around $167,600, with anticipated income
of $378,545. Income fluctuations may vary as follows:

Rental Scenarios Low Expected High
Number of reservations 50 59 65
Nights booked 208 222 242
Occupancy rate 57% 61% 66%
Average nightly rate (2021) $1,238 $1,548 $1,857
Anticipated 2020 Revenues $270,004 $378,545 $531,894

A detailed project budget is provided in Exhibit A.

The Freeman is 71% larger than the Playhouse, with two more bedrooms and the ability to house 5 more

people.

The Playhouse The Freeman
Square Footage 7,000 11,400
Number of Bedrooms 6 8
Number of Bathrooms 5 5.5
Dedicated Acres 0.2 40
Maximum Occupancy 20 25




We've based rental projections on these differences as follows, and are using the medium projections to
model our anticipated Net Operating Income.

The Playhouse | Freeman (Low Freeman (Med Freeman (High
(Actual) Projections) Projections) Projections)

Average nightly rate $1,095 $1,238 $1,548 $1,857
Number of nights 242 208 222 242
Occupancy rate 66% 57% 61% 66%
Number of premium one-night 5 10 15
rentals
Premium one-night rental fee $2500 $3,500 $5,500

There are no ancillary revenues assumed in these projections, only property-based rental incomes. The
Managers may pursue additional revenues through offering premium services such as concierge services,
arranged events from third party vendors and other experienced-based add-ons to the property rental
rates.

Further detail on the operating budget and anticipated rentals can be reviewed in Exhibit B.
About the Developer

Daniel Dus is the managing Partner of Shared Estates Asset Fund, GP, the Sponsor and Manager of,
Shared Estates Asset Fund 1, LLC, which in turn is the Manager of the Company. **

Daniel Dus is currently overseeing a large scale solar project investment strategy, with approximately
S600 million of project value already committed and contracted, for a $32 billion multinational
corporation. Daniel has contracted roughly $1 billion of construction projects in 17 states, holds an MBA,
is a Stanford Certified Project Manager and a Villanova Certified Master Lean Blackbelt with a focus on
project financial management. Daniel grew up in the Berkshires, where many of his family still reside. He
is committed to the economic redevelopment of this beautiful region and creating opportunities for all
residents to reinvest in their local real estate market.

The Sponsor’s team includes Anna Battoe, David and Shannon Erwin, Orion Parrott and Jason Dus. All are
general partners in Shared Estates Asset Fund, GP.

Anna Battoe is an attorney (J.D. - University of Florida, Fredric Levin College of Law) and trained
accountant, currently working for US Bank, where she helps lead financial compliance training.® Prior to

5 https://www.linkedin.com/in/danielrdus/
16 https://www.linkedin.com/in/anna-battoe-a4202457/

9



that she was a consultant at Protiviti, where she worked with multiple bulge bracket banks to support
their compliance with Federal regulatory requirements. Previously, she interned at Grant Thornton, The
United States Treasury (Department of Chief Counsel) and United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC).

David and Shannon Erwin are also General Partners. Dave is an accomplished software designer and
programmer, currently a Lead Technologist at the New York Times. Shannon is a marketing and client
relations specialist, including working at the School of Visual Arts in marketing, alumni and development
roles. David and Shannon will assist in deployment of the Fund’s online presence and booking platforms.

Orion Parrott is a serial entrepreneur and Berkeley MBA.Y” Having previously lived and worked in
Massachusetts as a Raytheon systems engineer, he spent the last five years building businesses in tech
and finance on the West Coast. He has successfully owned and operated rental property for over 20
years. Orion’s role on the team is primarily finance and operations.

Jason Dus is a General Partner and Massachusetts licensed General Contractor. Jason has overseen tens
of millions of dollars of turnkey construction work in the target market, and will lead rehabilitation of
Fund properties.

About the Change

SMALL CHANGE INDEX"

3% 4 o

MOBILITY COMMUNITY ECONOMIC VITALITY

Urban location Street life v Underserved community v
Walkable v Third Place v/ Jobs Created v
Bike friendly v Park or Plaza v Incubator

Business Corridor Building reuse or infill v/ Diverse workforce

Public or other transit Affordable housing v Green features v
Fix your own transport Fresh food access v/ Even more green v
Transit oriented development Minimized site disturbance v Reduced parking v

About the Offering

The Company is engaged in three simultaneous offerings of its securities:

e An offering under §4(a)(6) of the Securities Act of 1933, which we refer to as the “Reg CF Offering”;
e An offering under 17 CFR §230.506(c), which we refer to as the “Reg D Offering”; and

7 https://www.linkedin.com/in/orionparrott/

10



e An offering under Regulation S (where only non-US persons can invest), which we refer to as the
“Reg S Offering.”

The Reg S Offering is directed only to persons who do not live in the United States and are not U.S. citizens
or residents.

We plan to use the proceeds of the three offerings, $890,000, together with seller financing, to purchase
and renovate the property known as Freeman Berkshires, at 46 Bow Wow Rd, Egremont, MA, 01230.

In an offering under Regulation CF the issuer is required to state a “Target Amount,” meaning the
minimum amount the issuer will raise in the Reg CF Offering to complete the offering. For the reason just
described, our Target Amount for the Reg CF Offering is $1,000.

It doesn’t matter how much is raised in the Reg CF Offering and how much is raised in the Reg D and Reg
S Offerings. Thus, if we raise $1,000 in the Reg CF Offering and at least $99,000 in the Reg D and/or S
Offerings we will proceed, and vice versa.

However, we will not complete the Reg CF, Reg D or the Reg S Offerings unless we have raised a total of
at least $100,000 (minimum goal) by March 2, 2021. If we haven’t, all three offerings and all investment
commitments will be cancelled, and all committed funds will be returned.

The minimum investment in the Reg CF Offering is $1,000, and the minimum investment in the Reg D
Offering is $10,000. Investments above the minimum amount may be made in $500 increments (e.g.,
$1,500, $2,000 or $2,500, but not $2,136). Investors can cancel their commitment up until 11:59 pm EST
on February 28, 2021.

After that, any funds raised will be released to the Company and Investors will become Investor Members
of the Company. The Company may decide to change the offering Deadline but will provide at least five
days’ notice of such a change to all Investors. Investors will also be notified and asked to reconfirm their
commitment if any other material changes are made to this offering.

Investments under Reg CF are offered by NSSC Funding Portal, LLC, a licensed funding portal, while
investments under Reg D & Reg S are offered by NSSC Crowd, LLC.

About the Market

The Berkshires is a cultural tourist destination, noted as a center for the visual and performing arts.
Renowned local art museums include the Norman Rockwell Museum, the Clark Art Institute, the
Massachusetts Museum of Contemporary Art (Mass MoCA), and the Williams College Museum of Art.®
1920 21 performing-arts institutions in the Berkshires include Tanglewood Music Center and Boston
University Tanglewood Institute in Lenox, the summer home of the Boston Symphony Orchestra;
Shakespeare & Company in Lenox; summer theatre festivals such as the Berkshire Theatre Festival in

18 https://www.nrm.org/

19 https://www.clarkart.edu/

20 https://massmoca.org/about/

2 https://artmuseum.williams.edu/
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Stockbridge; and America's first and longest-running dance festival, Jacob's Pillow.?2 22 24 25 26 The area is
also home to the Kripalu Center of Stockbridge, "North America's largest residential facility for yoga,

holistic health and education.”?’

A variety of winter and outdoor activities attract year-round tourism, including three ski resorts

(Bousquet, Butternut and Jiminy Peak) and the longest zipline in the U.S.28 2% 30

As a result, the Berkshires are home to a large and growing tourist economy. Tourist spending in the
Berkshires was recorded by the Massachusetts Office of Travel and Tourism as $420 million in 2017. Its
unique cultural centers have resulted in the development of some of the leading U.S. resorts, spas and
hotels, such as Blantyre, Canyon Ranch, Miraval (formerly Cranwell) and the Wheatleigh.3! 32 33 3% None
of these properties are available to lease as entire estate, or shared rental, and the cost of events at these
venues reaches into the tens of thousands of dollars.

Historically, these estates were only available to the ultra-rich. But now, the Sponsor plans to market to
the upper middle-class demographic including millennials. The Sponsor plans to select, redevelop, and
offer new assets as luxury short term vacation rentals. By achieving low-cost acquisition and high-value
upgrades, the Fund will offer renters far better value than traditional hotels and bed & breakfasts on a
per-person basis. In short, the Fund brings the luxury estate experience to the middle class.

About the group travel market

Group travel includes weddings, birthdays, anniversaries, reunions, extended family vacations, corporate
retreats and more. In business travel, the group travel segment is the largest and fastest growing at more
than 4.5% compounding annually since 2017 and predicted to continue through 2023. A variety of
attributes of group travel make it an attractive market focus for SEA Fund:

Reliable source of travel revenues

Groups continue to travel regardless of economic downshifts. Groups plan well in advance of their trip,
usually 6-12 months ahead; reservations are secured ahead of time.

22 https://www.bu.edu/cfa/tanglewood/
2 https://www.bso.org/

24 https://www.shakespeare.org/

25 https://lenox.org/

26 https://www.jacobspillow.org/

27 https://kripalu.org/

28 https://www.bousquets.com/

29 https://skibutternut.com/

30 https://www.jiminypeak.com/

31 https://blantyre.com/

32 https://www.canyonranch.com/

33 https://www.miravalberkshires.com/
34 https://wheatleigh.com/

12



Groups travel year-round

Other tourists are tied to prime travel seasons, but groups have different motivations for travel and often
seek low-season or mid-week trips to fit their needs.

Groups result in high exposure, future interest, and repeat business

As trends and lifestyles change, so do the types of groups that travel. Destinations benefit from new
travelers that range from niche travel clubs fulfilling a mission to affinity groups such as women’s,
performance and voluntourism groups. By the numbers, stays by these large parties result in properties
obtaining more exposure over time than smaller venues; for example, the 7,000 square foot PLAYHOUSE
(case study below) has hosted over 2,000 guests since it opened in 2016 — with many of these guests also
becoming repeat guests. Some have already booked their fourth stay at the venue in as many years.

One decision maker delivers more travelers

Every “planner” represents a range of 20-40 potential travelers. These planners are the social
networkers, organizers, coordinators, leaders or facilitators that a large family, group of friends or
company has working to plan and schedule travel.

Underserved market

Historically, large groups have been limited to block-bookings of large hotels, motels or bed & breakfasts.
There is a stark limitation of available inventory of stand-alone large format short term rentals. A national
search of VRBO/HomeAway, filtered for properties with 19 or more bedrooms, produces only about 40
results, and fewer than a dozen are high end.

Sponsor properties deliver premium amenities and finishes at a distinct cost advantage to alternative
group travel options such as hotels, motels and bed & breakfast properties. For example, a group of 25
travelers might save more than approximately $5,900 for a five-night stay:

Cost comparison Hotel Shared Estate
Number of occupants 25 25
Number of rooms required (average occupancy of 2) 13 N/A
Average nightly rate $210 N/A
Group of 25 $2,730 $1,548
Cost of 5-night stay $13,650 $7,740

Key Deal Points
e Luxury for everyone. Renovation of an historic luxury estate for middle class family gatherings.
e Sharing economy. Lower cost per person than standard hotel rooms.
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Sustainable. Carbon neutral, no single-use amenities, reclaimed building materials.
Robust vacation market. Year-round tourist activities.

Cultural epicenter. MASS MoCA, Tanglewood and Jacob's Pillow are among the many cultural
neighbors.

Local commitment. Sponsor plans to donate 1% of total rental income to The Elizabeth Freeman
Center, a local service supporting victims of domestic abuse and assault.

About the Return

Under the LLC Agreement, all distributions will be made annually in the following order of priority, after

bank or seller financing loans have been repaid:

1.

First, the Available Cash shall be distributed to the Investor Members, including the Sponsor as
Investor Member, until they have received their Preferred Return of 8% for the current year.
Second, the balance of the Available Cash, if any, shall be distributed to the Investor Members,
including the Sponsor as Investor Member, until they have received any shortfall in the Preferred
Return for any prior year.
Third, the balance of the Available Cash, if any, shall be distributed to the Investor Members,
including the Sponsor as Investor Member, until they have received a full return of their
Unreturned Investment.
Fourth, the balance of the Available Cash, if any, shall be distributed as follows until Investor
Members, including the Sponsor as Investor Member, have received an amount equal to twice
(200% of) their original investment in total.

a. 80% to the Investor Members, including the Sponsor as Investor Member; and

b. 20% to Sponsor as a promoted interest.
Fifth, the balance of the Available Cash, if any, shall be distributed:

a. 60% to the Investor Members, including the Sponsor as Investor Member; and

b. 40% to Sponsor as a promoted interest.

As a bonus, the Company plans to offer each Investor Member a 15% discount to the nightly rate at The

Freeman Berkshires property for up to seven nights per year; If the investor lives in Berkshire County, the

Company plans to offer them a little more with a 20% discount to the nightly rate. This extra discount

affirms the Company’s commitment to the local community and earning local business.

The table below illustrates our estimate of how much an Investor might receive back for a $2,500

investment made under two scenarios - property sale in year 5 or in year 10, each based on a 9% CAP rate.

Sale in Y10 Salein Y5
Net Operating Income (NOI)I $371,649 $300,317
Anticipated sales price $4,129,438 $3,336,859
Less sales expenses (5%) (5247,766) (5200,212)
Less balance on loan (51,199,423) ($1,227,570)
Cash available for distribution from property sale $2,682,249 $1,909,078|
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Cash available for distribution from operations $829,780 $347,736

Profit available for distribution $3,512,029 $2,256,814|

Return to Investor Members

Initial investment returned $890,000 $890,000
Preferred return at 8% $712,000 $356,000
80% of profit to 200% of amount invested $178,000 $534,000
60% of remaining cash $1,732,029 $476,814
Total return to Investor Members $3,512,029 $2,256,814|
Potential return on a $2,500 investment made $9,865 $6,339

Return to Sponsor

20% of profit to 200% of amount invested $44,500] $133,500
40% of remaining cash $1,154,686 $317,876
Total Return to Sponsor $1,199,186) $451,376

Caution: This table is merely an illustration based on current assumptions and estimates as of the date of this offering
and may change at any time based on market or other conditions and may not come to pass. All investments carry
risk of loss and there is no assurance that an investment will provide a positive return. Many things could go wrong
with this offering, including those listed in the Exhibit C: Risks of Investing.

COVID-19 Disclosure

COVID-19 has so far had a significant negative impact on the economy overall with regards to increased
unemployment, reduced consumer and travel spending, and challenges to hospitality businesses such as
hotels and restaurants. However, recommendations by the National Institute of Health (NIH) and new
consumer behaviors including escaping urban environments, social distancing and creating COVID bubbles
have increased rural demand both for ownership and retreat opportunities.®® 3¢ The rural redevelopment
plan of the Company has not changed in response to COVID-19 but in fact has been reaffirmed by long
term expected changes in market demand. Because of the unprecedented nature of this 100-year event,
the Company discloses here both positive and negative potentialities that may result.

Fhttps://www.hackensackmeridianhealth.org/HealthU/2020/08/26/how-to-create-a-covid-bubble-and-why-you-
should-consider-one/
36 https://www.globest.com/2020/07/13/covid-could-cause-real-estate-vacuum-in-big-cities-boom-in-rural-towns/
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Negative effects

Local regulations may restrict or prohibit travel to or from other areas.’
e Restaurants and local amenities may be less available to potential renters encouraging them to
stay at their permanent residence. Cultural performances and museums may become unavailable.
e People may be less willing to travel by air to remote destinations.
People may be concerned about rental accommodations being fully sanitized before their stay.
These conditions are subject to change and we don’t know how long these negative effects may
continue.

Positive effects

e Demand for rural real estate rentals has increased and may continue to do so. AirBnB reports a
25% increase in bookings for rural destinations over 2019. This trend resulted in stronger bookings
of The Playhouse and may result in higher nightly rates and more nights booked.*®

e Demand for rural real estate has also increased and may lead to a higher exit sale price for the
Property. Sales are up 14% and pending listings are up 53% compared to last year. The website
theBerkshireedge.com has called it a “buying frenzy” in the Berkshires.*

® As people seek to isolate themselves from urban environments, demand for all types of rural
accommodations has increased.*®

e Many more people are working from home and may need more space than available in their
current primary residence. As people spend more time at home, demand for larger properties has
increased and may continue to do so. Demand for amenities outside the property may decrease.

e These conditions are subject to change and we don’t know how long these positive effects may
continue.

§227.201(e) — Number of Employees

Company Instructions

This question asks only for the number of your employees, not their names.

e This information should be based on current employees, not those you intend to hire with the proceeds of the
offering.

e Include both full-time and part-time employees.

e Include only people who are W-2 employees for tax purposes. Don’t include people who are 1099 independent
contractors.

The Company currently has 0 employees.

37 https://www.mass.gov/info-details/covid-19-travel-order
Bhttps://www.cnbc.com/2020/08/06/rural-airbnb-bookings-are-surging-as-vacationers-look-to-escape-the-
coronavirus.html

39 https://theberkshireedge.com/covid-19-spurs-real-estate-buying-frenzy-in-the-berkshires/

40 https://www.cnn.com/2020/08/31/success/leaving-the-city-for-suburbs/index.html
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§227.201(f) — Risks of Investing
Required Statement:

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you can
afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, Investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the
terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These securities have not been
recommended or approved by any federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority.
Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securities offered or
the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering document
or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination that these securities are exempt from
registration.

Additional statement:

There are numerous risks to consider when making an investment such as this one and financial
projections are just that - projections. Returns are not guaranteed. Conditions that may affect your
investment include unforeseen construction costs, changes in market conditions, and potential disasters
that are not covered by insurance. Review the attached Exhibit C: Risks of Investing for a more expansive
list of potential risks associated with an investment in this Company.

Unless otherwise noted, the images on the offering page are used to convey the personality of the
neighborhood in which the project is planned. Properties shown in these images are not included in the
offering and Investors will not receive an interest in any of them.

§227.201(g) — Target Offering Amount and Offering Deadline

Company Instructions

This question asks for the “target offering amount.” That means the minimum amount of money you’re trying to
raise in this offering. For example, if you’re trying to raise a minimum of $600,000 but would accept up to $800,000,
your “target offering amount” would be $600,000. This question also asks for the “offering deadline.” That means
the date when, if you haven’t raised at least the target offering amount, you’d call off the offering and return any
money to Investors.

Target Offering Amount $1,000
Offering Deadline March 2, 2021
Required Statement:

If the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the Target Offering Amount as of
the Offering Deadline, no securities will be sold in the offering, investment commitments will be canceled,
and all committed funds will be returned.
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§227.201(h) — Commitments that Exceed the Target Offering Amount

Company Instructions:

This question asks whether the Company will accept more money from Investors once the Target Offering Amount
is raised and, if so, how you will deal with “oversubscriptions.” The question deals only with this offering — it’s not
asking whether you will try to raise more money in the future.

Will the Company accept commitments that X Yes

exceed the Target Offering Amount? No

What is the maximum you will accept in this

Offering (it may not exceed $1,070,000)? $890,000
We will reduce the subscription of every
Investor (including those whose
commitments made up the Target
Offering Amount) on a pro-rata basis, so
that every Investor who subscribes will
be able to participate.

X We will accept subscriptions on a first-
If Yes, how will the Company deal with the come, first-served basis.
oversubscriptions? Other (explain):

§227.201(i) — How the Company Intends to Use the Money Raised in the Offering

Company Instructions

If you’re reasonably sure how you’re going to use some or all of the money, use the first table below. If you’re not
yet sure, you should identify and describe each probable use and the factors you might consider in making a final
decision. And if your answer to question 201(h) above was that Yes, you will accept commitments that exceed the
Target Amount, then you should also briefly describe how you will spend those “extra” dollars in the second table.

The Company is Reasonably Sure it Will Use the Money as Follows:

As discussed in the business plan we are conducting three offerings —a Reg CF, a Reg D and a Reg S
Offering. We are seeking to raise a minimum of $100,000 and a maximum of $890,000 in all three of
these offerings combined. If we raise the minimum of $100,000:

Use of Money How Much (approximately)
Cost of Renovations & construction $100,000
TOTAL $100,000

If we raise the maximum goal of $890,000:

Use of Money How Much (approximately)
Cost of Renovations & construction $810,000
Down payment for owner financing $80,000
TOTAL $890,000
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§227.201(j) — The Investment Process
To Invest

e Review this Form C and the business plan, and the Campaign Page;
e |[f you decide to invest, press the Add Some Change button
e Follow the instructions

To Cancel Your Investment

Send an email to hello@smallchange.co no later than 48 hours before the Offering Deadline. In your email,
include your name and the name of the Company.

Note

For more information about the investment and cancellation process, see the Educational Materials on
the Small Change.*! See also the Investment Agreements attached, Exhibit D: Reg CF Investment
Agreement and Exhibit E: Reg D Investment Agreement.

Required Statements
Investors may cancel an investment commitment until 48 hours prior to the Offering Deadline.
Small Change will notify Investors when and if the Target Offering Amount has been raised.

If the Company reaches the Target Offering Amount before the Offering Deadline, it may close the offering
early if it provides notice about the new Offering Deadline at least five business days before such new
Offering Deadline, absent a material change that would require an extension of the offering and
reconfirmation of the investment commitment.

If an Investor does not cancel an investment commitment before the 48-hour period before the Offering
Deadline, the funds will be released to the Company upon closing of the offering and the Investor will
receive securities in exchange for his or her investment.

§227.201(k) — Material Changes
Required Statement

If an Investor does not reconfirm his or her investment commitment after a material change is made to
the offering, the Investor's investment commitment will be cancelled, and the committed funds will be
returned.

Explanation for Investors

A “material change” means a change that an average, careful Investor would want to know about before
making an investment decision. A material change could be good or bad. If a material change occurs after
you make an investment commitment but before the Offering closes, then the Company will notify you

4 www.smallchange.co
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and ask whether you want to invest anyway. If you do not affirmatively choose to invest, then your

commitment will be cancelled, your funds will be returned to you, and you will not receive any securities.

§227.201(l) — Price of the Securities

The Company is offering “securities” in the form of limited liability company interests, which we refer to

as “Investor Shares.” The price is $1.00 per Investor Share.

We arrived at the price of Investor Shares as follows:

We estimated how much money we need to complete the project.

We estimated the value of the project when it's completed.

We estimated what we believe is a fair return to Investors.

Based on those estimates, we established the manner for sharing profits in our LLC Agreement.

§227.201(m) — Terms of the Securities

Overview

The Company is offering “securities” in the form of limited liability company interests, which we refer to

as “Investor Shares.” When you purchase an Investor Share, you will become an owner of the Company,

which is a Delaware limited liability company. Your ownership will be governed by the limited liability

company Agreement of the Company dated September 19, 2019 and any amendments to that agreement

(whether adopted now or in the future), which are together referred to as the “LLC Agreement.” A copy
of the LLC Agreement is attached as Exhibit F: LLC Agreement.

Your Right to Distributions

If the Company is profitable, it will make distributions to its owners from time to time. Under the LLC

Agreement, the source of the distribution is immaterial. Instead, all distributions will be made in the

following order of priority:

1.

First, the Available Cash shall be distributed to the Investor Members, including the Sponsor
as Investor Member, until they have received their Preferred Return of 8% for the current
year.
Second, the balance of the Available Cash, if any, shall be distributed to the Investor Members,
including the Sponsor as Investor Member, until they have received any shortfall in the
Preferred Return for any prior year.
Third, the balance of the Available Cash, if any, shall be distributed to the Investor Members,
including the Sponsor as Investor Member, until they have received a full return of their
Unreturned Investment.
Fourth, the balance of the Available Cash, if any, shall be distributed as follows until Investor
Members, including the Sponsor as Investor Member, have received an amount equal to twice
(200% of) their original investment in total.

a. 80 % to the Investor Members, including the Sponsor as Investor Member; and

b. 20% to Sponsor as a promoted interest.
Fifth, the balance of the Available Cash, if any, shall be distributed:

a. 60 % to the Investor Members, including the Sponsor as Investor Member; and
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b. 40% to Sponsor as a promoted interest.

For any year that the Company realizes a taxable profit or gain, the Company will try to distribute at least
enough money to you to pay any associated Federal and State income tax liabilities.

Obligation to Contribute Capital

Once you pay for your Investor Shares, you will have no obligation to contribute more money to the
Company, and you will not be personally obligated for any debts of the Company. However, under some
circumstances you could be required by law to return some or all of a distribution you receive from the
Company.

No Voting Rights

Although you will be an owner of the Company, you will generally not have the right to vote or otherwise
participate in the management of the Company. Instead, the Manager will control all aspects of the
Company’s business. For all practical purposes you will be a passive Investor.

No Right to Transfer
Investor Shares will be illiquid (meaning you might not be able to sell them) for four reasons:

e The LLC Agreement prohibits the sale or other transfer of Investor Shares without the Manager’s
consent.

e If you want to sell your Investor Shares the Manager will have the first right of refusal to buy it, which
could make it harder to find a buyer.

e Even if a sale were permitted, there is no ready market for Investor Shares, as there would be for a
publicly traded stock.

e For a period of one year, you won’t be allowed to transfer the Investor Shares except (i) to the
Company itself, (ii) to an “accredited” Investor, (iii) to a family or trust, or (iii) in a public offering of
the Company’s shares.

As a result, you should plan to hold your Investor Shares until the Company is dissolved.
Modification of Terms of Investor Shares
The terms of the Investor Shares may not be modified or amended.
Other Classes of Securities

As of now, the Company has only two classes of securities: Investor Shares and Sponsor Shares. The
Investors in this Offering (which may include the Sponsor and its affiliates) will own all the Investor Shares,
while all of the Sponsor Shares will be owned by the Manager.

The owner of the Sponsor Shares has the right to receive the distributions described above.

Whereas the owners of the Investor Shares have no right to vote or otherwise participate in the
management of the Company, the Manager, who will own all the Sponsor Shares, has total control over
all aspects of the Company and its business.
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Dilution of Rights

Under the LLC Agreement, the Manager has the right to create additional classes of securities, including
classes of securities with rights that are superior to those of the Investor Shares. For example, the
Manager could create a class of securities that has the right to vote and/or the right to receive
distributions before the Investor Shares.

The Person Who Controls the Company

Daniel Dus controls interests in the Manager, and the Manager has complete control over the Company.
Therefore, Mr. Dus effectively controls the Company.

How the Manager’s Exercise of Rights Could Affect You

e The Manager has full control over the Company and the actions of the Manager could affect you in a
number of different ways, including these:

e The Manager decides whether and when to sell the project, which affects when (if ever) you will get
your money back. If the Manager sells the project “too soon,” you could miss out on the opportunity
for greater appreciation. If the Manager sells the project “too late,” you could miss out on a favorable
market.

e The Manager decides when to make distributions, and how much. You might want the Manager to
distribute more money, but the Manager might decide to keep the money in reserve or invest it into
the project.

e The Manager could decide to hire himself or his relatives to perform services for the Company and
establish rates of compensation higher than fair market value.

e The Manager could decide to refinance the project. A refinancing could raise money to distribute, but
it could also add risk to the project.

e The Manager decides on renting the project, including the terms of any lease.

The Manager decides how much of its own time to invest in the project.
The Manager could decide to raise more money from other Investors and could decide to give those
Investors a better deal.

How the Securities are Being Valued

The price of the Investor Shares was determined by the Manager based on the Manager’s opinion about
the value of the project.

The Manager doesn’t expect there to be any reason to place a value on the Investor Shares in the future.
If we had to place a value on the Investor Shares, it would be based on the amount of money the owners
of the Investor Shares would receive if the project were sold.

Risks Associated with Minority Ownership
Owning a minority interest in a Company comes with risks, including these:

o The risk that the person running the Company will do a bad job.
e The risk that the person running the Company will die, become ill, or just quit, leaving the Company
in limbo.
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The risk that your interests and the interests of the person running the Company aren’t really aligned.
The risk that you’ll be “stuck” in the Company forever.

e The risks that the actions taken by the person running the Company — including those listed above
under “How the Manager’s Exercise of Rights Could Affect You” — won’t be to your liking or in your
interest.

§227.201(n) — The Funding Portal

The Company is offering its securities through NSSC Funding Portal, LLC, which is a “Funding Portal”
licensed by the Securities and Exchange Commission and FINRA. The SEC File number is 007-00012 and
the Funding Portal Registration Depository (FPRD) number is 282942.

§227.201(0) — Compensation of the Funding Portal

The Company will compensate NSSC Funding Portal, LLC as follows:
An administrative fee of $2,500; plus

A success fee equal to 5% of the amount raised.

NSSC Funding Portal, LLC owns no interest in the Company, directly or indirectly, and will not acquire an
interest as part of the Offering, nor is there any arrangement for NSSC Funding Portal, LLC to acquire an
interest.

§227.201(p) — Indebtedness of the Company

Creditor Amount Interest rate | Maturity Date Other Important Terms
None N/A N/A

Explanation for Investors

III

The indebtedness listed in that table is our “material” indebtedness, meaning indebtedness that is
significant relative to the value of the Company as a whole. In addition to the indebtedness listed in the
table, we also have miscellaneous “trade debt,” meaning debt to trade creditors like landlords, lawyers,

and accountants, of about SO in total.

§227.201(q) — Other Offerings of Securities within the Last Three Years

Company Instructions

If you’ve raised money from third parties, then you’ve conducted an offering of securities. This question asks for all
such offerings within the last three years.

Don’t include money invested by the principals of the Company

Don’t include money you’ve borrowed from banks or other financial institutions

Don’t include credit card debt

Third parties include friends and family members

Do include money you borrowed (not from banks or other financial institutions)

Do not include this Regulation Crowdfunding offering
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Date Offering Offering Amount

Began Exemption Type of Securities Sold How the Money was Used
None N/A N/A None

§227.201(r) — Transactions Between the Company and “Insiders”

Company Instructions

The term “transaction” means any business transaction, including stock purchases, salaries, property rentals,

consulting arrangements, guaranties, etc.

e Include only transactions that occurred since the beginning of your last fiscal year (the one before the current
fiscal year) and transactions that are currently planned.

e Include only transactions that involved an amount of money (or other value) greater than 5% of the total amount
you’ve raised in Regulation Crowdfunding during the last 12 months, plus the Target Offering Amount for the
current Offering. For example, if you haven’t raised money using Regulation Crowdfunding before, and your
current Target Offering Amount is $600,000, include only transactions that involved more than $30,000 each.

e Include only transactions between the Company and:

Anyone listed in your answer to question 227.201(b); or

o Anyone listed in your answer to question 227.201(c); or
o Ifthe Company was organized within the last three years, any promotor you’ve used; or
o Any family member of any of those people, meaning a child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent,

grandparent, spouse or spousal equivalent (meaning someone you live with and can’t stand), sibling,
mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law, including
adoptive relationships; or

o Any corporation or other entity in which any of those people owns an interest.

Description of Date of Name of Relationship to Company Value of Insider’s
Transaction Transactio Insider Interest in
n Transaction
Construction 10/01/20 Jason Dus Cousin of Daniel Dus, Managing $500,000
Contract Partner of Shared Estates Asset

Fund, GP, the Manager of, Shared
Estates Asset Fund 1, LLC, the
Manager of The Freeman
Berkshires, LLC

Property TBD Shared Estates | The Sponsor 6% of gross rental
Management Fee Asset Fund, GP income
Development Fee*? | TBD Shared Estates | The Sponsor 2% of project cost

Asset Fund, GP

42 Development Fee: Pertain to the entirety of the building process and may involve a variety of pre-construction
steps, such as environmental testing, securing zoning, obtaining building approvals and permits and hiring
architects, engineers and contractors to complete the work. Sponsors typically charge development fees as a
percentage of either hard costs or total development costs, including soft costs. Development fees vary and can
range from 3% to 5% of total cost often with smaller percentages charged on larger projects.
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Construction TBD Shared Estates | The Sponsor 3% of project cost
Management Fee*? Asset Fund, GP

Investor TBD Shared Estates | The Sponsor 1% of gross rental
Management Asset Fund, GP income

§227.201(s) — The Company’s Financial Condition
Liquidity
The Company was organized under the Delaware Limited liability company Act on September 19, 2019.

As of now, we have not yet begun operations other than those associated with general start-up and
organizational matters. We have no revenues and very minimal liquid resources (cash).

We intend to use the proceeds of this Offering to buy and operate the project, as described in our business
plan, as soon as the Offering closes. We will also use debt (borrow money) to finance a portion of the
costs.

If we cannot raise money in this Offering, or cannot borrow money on the terms we expect, then the
Company will probably dissolve.

Capital Resources

As of now, we have not purchased any assets, but have entered into an agreement to purchase the
Property at 46 Bow Wow Rd, Egremont, Massachusetts. We expect to finalize the acquisition of the
Property as soon as we raise money from Investors in this Offering, or sooner.

Other than the proceeds we hope to receive from the Offering, our only other source of capital is a Seller-
financed loan.

Historical Results of Operations
The Company is in the development stage and has no history of operations.
Changes and Trends

We are not aware of any changes or trends in the financial condition or operations of the Company since
the date of the financial information provided in this Form C.

§227.201(t) — The Company’s Financial Statements

Company Instructions
If this offering involves an SPV, you are required to provide financial statements only for the Company, not for the
SPV.

43 Construction Management Fee: Sponsors may charge construction fees if there is significant renovation as part
of an asset business plan. In projects involving construction, the sponsor does a tremendous amount of project
management, which can include working directly with a general contractor or subcontractors to determine the
scope of work, gather and negotiate bids, hire and fire contractors, make key decisions along the way (e.g. interior
finishes), review monthly cost reports, approve installment payments, make decisions on any change orders
(usually with consent of Investment Committees), inspect progress, and approve completion. Construction
management fees typically average 5% of hard construction costs or less.
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Our financial statements are attached as Exhibit I: Financial Statements.
§227.201(u) — Disqualification Events
Explanation for Investors

A Company is not allowed to raise money using Regulation Crowdfunding if certain designated people
associated with the Company (including its directors or executive officers) committed certain prohibited
acts (mainly concerned with violations of the securities laws) on or after May 16, 2016. (You can read
more about those rules in the Educational Materials posted on SmallChange.co). This item requires a
Company to disclose whether any of those designated people committed any of those prohibited acts
before May 16, 2016.

A Company called CrowdCheck ran background checks on the principals of the Company (i.e., those
covered by this rule). You can see the CrowdCheck reports attached as Exhibit J: Background Checks.

For the Company, the answer is No, none of the designated people committed any of the prohibited acts,
ever.

§227.201(v) — Updates on the Progress of the Offering

As described above under §227.201(g) — Target Offering Amount and Offering Deadline, the ‘target
amount’ for this offering is $1,000. You can track our progress in raising money under the Reg CF Offering
and the Reg D Offering at Small Change on the Offering page.

227.201(w) — Annual Reports for the Company

We will file a report with the Securities and Exchange Commission annually and post the report on our
website at https://sharedestates.fund/freemanberkshires, no later than 120 days after the end of each
fiscal year.

It’s possible that at some point, the Company won’t be required to file anymore annual reports. We will
notify you if that happens.

§227.201(x) — Our Compliance with Reporting Obligations
Explanation for Investors

This item requires a Company to disclose whether it has ever failed to file the reports required by
Regulation Crowdfunding.

The Company has never raised money using Regulation Crowdfunding before, and therefore has never
been required to file any reports.

§227.201(y) — Other Important Information Prospective Investors Should Know About

Company Instructions

Read through everything you’ve told prospective Investors on this Form C, in the business and in Exhibit C: Risks of
Investing. Is there anything else important you would tell your grandmother if she were considering an investment?
Something about the neighborhood where the project is located? The builder? The local economy? Anything at all?
If so, list it here.
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EXHIBIT A: PROJECT BUDGET

USES
Renovations
Property acquisition $1,600,000
Closing legal
Transfer tax
SUB-TOTAL ACQUISITION $1,600,000
Dumpster Fees $10,000 | Outgoing waste items
Windows/Exterior Doors $8,000 Installation fJf new Andersen windows or doors to
replace all single pane glass
Siding Repair $9.500 Repla?cement of fﬂeterlorated 5|d.|n.g/tr|m at various
locations; materials to match existing
Kitchen Renovation $15,000 Reflms.hlng cabln'ets. to quern mlnlméllst, installation of
new high-end built-in appliances and fixtures
. Installation of code required electrical, addition of
U2 (i) (e E e »13,500 hardwood, sheetrock and fixtures
Fixtures $11,000 New lighting, switch plates, plugs (including USB and
web enabled)
. Installation of some new plumbing fixtures, including no-
Al Elrel A 230,000 touch; possible addition of mini splits if needed
Pool $95,000 | New patio, safety fencing and pool / spa
Tennis court $2,0000 Rehabilitate clay court
Removal/pruning overgrown vegetation; rehabilitation
Landscaping and vineyard $14,400 | of existing gardens; new plantings of vegetation and
gardens, installation of mini vineyard
BiErEy $5 600 4 'compact airport mix to outline original shape of
driveway
Pt el 455,000 I:;t:ll 3,000SF new bluestone or similar patio with grill
L English-style glass buildi ith firepl HVAC
Greenhouse dining area $158,000 z.m'ge nglish-style glass bul |.ng with fireplace, !
dining area, lounge and electric
Sl Sancling $11,000 Sand all common area wood floors (refln.ls.h natural);
sand all new common area wood floor (finish natural)
Bathrooms $9,500 New fixtures and touch-up of all bathrooms
Garage Open Space $11,000 | Rehabilitate space, possibly into livable space
et Pei $23,000 Wa.nll and ce|I|n'g repairs as needed; two coats of flr?ISh
paint on all painted surfaces; new sheetrock finishing
Exterior Painting $25,000 | Rehabilitation as needed / aesthetic updates
Construction Management Fee Oversight of significant renovation, hiring of contractors,
$22,421 . -
(3%) scheduling of all activities
SUB-TOTAL RENOVATIONS $528,921
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FURNITURE, FIXTURES &
EQUIPMENT

Smart TVs in each room and main room, smart speakers
in each room and main room, smart LEDs in each

T 212,500 bedroom, security system and premium sounds system
for entertainment in dining area

Beds and Linens $17,500 Hardwood platform beds and premium linens (two sets
per bed)

. Indoor and outdoor furniture in main areas and
Furniture 237,000 bedrooms, including three built-in daybeds
Housekeeping equipment $2,550 | Three fully equipped carts
Safety equipment $3,300 | Extinguishers, ladders and emergency kits
Entertainment $3,500 | Game room outfitting and outdoor game equipment

. Benches/chairs for outdoor space, reclaimed wood,
Art, reclaimed wood and sculpture| . .
$35,000 | sculpture center piece, original art throughout, new
garden .
handrails
SUB-TOTAL FF & E $111,350

Accounting $1,500

Acquisition Fee (1%) $24,000 ir;lgiizr;sgigés;rloe;:?tr;, conducting due diligence and
Architect - design $2,500 | Aesthetic design items

Architect / engineer - compliance $2,500 | ADA, fire and other MA compliance requirements
Capital Event Fee (0.25%) $1,250 | Oversight of project financing process

Contingency $6,501

beeopr e () Stosus | Qs ofprecomston tep g v
Advertising and Marketing Reg CF $40,500 Photography, editing, paid advertising, content creation,
Crowdfunding ! strategy, videos, presentation materials.

Financing fees $23,500 | Crowdfunding

Insurance $5,100 Construction period

Legal $3,500 Purchase, title search, mortgage, etc.

Property Marketing, booking fees $21436 Marketing of the property for rent, website, travel,

& travel ’ platform fees, content creation

Maintenance $2,700 During construction

B P $1.500 Eztrinn:iz:tiidﬁlpeedr.mitting costs. Actual cost not known until
Property taxes $10,412 During construction

Utilities $7,883 During construction

SUB-TOTAL SOFT COSTS $169,729

GRAND TOTAL $2,410,000




SOURCES Value | Notes

Seller financing $1,520,000
Investor Members $890,000 | Including sponsor
TOTAL SOURCES $2,410,000
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OPERATING PRO FORMA: 10 YEAR
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OPERATING PRO FORMA: 5 YEAR
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Year Ending
Total Acquisition Costs
Purchase Price 1,600,000
Transfer PIP/ Major Capital Improvement Reserve 810,000
Closing Costs -
Total Acquisition Costs 2,410,000
Income
Rooms 343,545 346,770 370,077 388,389 405,280
Events 35,000 36,156 37,851 39,724 41,451
Total Revenue 378,545 382,925 407,928 428,112 446,731
Expenses
Accounting & Financial 6,285 6,474 6,668 6,868 7,074
Repairs & Maintenance 39,939 40,610 41,293 41,987 42,693
Leasing & Marketing 2,499 2,574 2,651 2,731 2,813
Insurance 10,200 10,440 10,682 10,916 11,142
Property Management (6%) 22,713 22,976 24,476 25,687 26,804
Property Taxes 20,823 21,313 21,808 22,284 22,747
Utilities 18,740 18,993 19,250 19,510 19,773
Total Expenses 121,199 123,380 126,828 129,982 133,046
Owner's expenses
Investor M; Fee(1%ofR ) 3,785 3,829 4,079 4,281 4,467
Asset Management Fee (1% Capital Accounts) 8,900 8,900 8,900 8,900 8,900
NET OPERATING INCOME 244,660 246,816 268,120 284,949 300,317
Reserve for Replacement 3,785 3,829 4,079 4,281 4,467
Debt Service Temp Loan
Loan Disbursement Net of Fees 1,520,000
Interest Payments 44,329 44,329 44,329 44,329 44,329
Principal Payments 53,590 53,590 53,590 63,382 1,295,848
Charitable Donations (1%) 2,003 2,025 2,238 2,406 2,560
Exit
SalesPrice - - - - 3,336,859
Sales Expense - - - - 166,843
Disposition Fee (1%) 33,369
Sales Proceeds (Unlevered) - - - - 3,136,648
Cash Flow Before Financing (2,410,000) 238,871 240,962 261,803 278,262 3,429,938
Cash Flow After Financing (890,000) 140,952 143,043 163,884 170,551 2,089,761
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Totals
Capital $ (890,000)
Available cash from cash flow 140,952 143,043 163,884 170,551 2,089,761
Available cash from sale
Pref 71,200 71,200 71,200 71,200 71,200 356,000
Equity returned 69,752 71,843 92,684 99,351 556,371 890,000
Balance of equity S 890,000 820,248 748,405 655,722 556,371 0
80% LP Split 0 0 0 0 534,000 534,000
20% GP Split 0 0 0 0 133,500 133,500
Balance of cash available
60% LP Split 0 0 0 0 476,814 476,814
40% GP Split S - 0 0 0 0 317,876 317,876
TOTAL TO LP INVESTORS $ (890,000) 140,952 143,043 163,884 170,551 1,638,385
Total Investor Member Returns 2,256,814
Total Sponsor Returns 451,376
Total Returns 2,708,190




EXHIBIT C: RISKS OF INVESTING

THE PURCHASE OF SECURITIES FROM THE COMPANY IS SPECULATIVE AND INVOLVES SIGNIFICANT RISK,
INCLUDING THE RISK THAT YOU WILL LOSE SOME OR ALL OF YOUR MONEY. THIS INVESTMENT IS SUITABLE
ONLY FOR INVESTORS WHO FULLY UNDERSTAND AND ARE CAPABLE OF BEARING THE RISKS.

SOME OF THE RISKS ARE DESCRIBED BELOW. THE ORDER IN WHICH THESE RISKS ARE DISCUSSED IS NOT
INTENDED TO SUGGEST THAT SOME RISKS ARE MORE IMPORTANT THAN OTHERS.

Risks Associated with the Real Estate Industry.

Speculative Nature of Real Estate Investing. Real estate can be risky and unpredictable. For example,
many experienced, informed people lost money when the real estate market declined in 2007-2008. Time
has shown that the real estate market goes down without warning, sometimes resulting in significant
losses. Some of the risks of investing in real estate include changing laws, including environmental laws;
floods, fires, and other acts of God, some of which may not be insurable; changes in national or local
economic conditions; changes in government policies, including changes in interest rates established by
the Federal Reserve; and international crises. You should invest in real estate in general, and in the
Company in particular, only if you can afford to lose your investment and are willing to live with the ups
and downs of the real estate industry.

Environmental Risks. The Company has undertaken what it believes to be adequate testing of the
property and is not aware of any environmental contamination. However, the nature of these tests is such
that contamination cannot be entirely ruled out. Under Federal and State laws, a current or previous
owner or operator of real estate may be required to remediate any hazardous conditions without regard
to whether the owner knew about or caused the contamination. Similarly, the owner of real estate may
be subject to common law claims by third parties based on damages and costs resulting from
environmental contamination. The cost of investigating and remediating environmental contamination
can be substantial, even catastrophic.

ADA Compliance. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (the “ADA”) requires all public buildings to
meet certain standards for accessibility by disabled persons. Complying with the ADA can add significant
time and costs to a project.

Regulation and Zoning. Like all real estate projects, this project is subject to extensive building and zoning
ordinances and codes, which can change at any time. Complying with all of these rules could add
significant time and costs to the project.

Casualty Losses. A fire, hurricane, mold infestation, or other casualty could materially and adversely affect
the project.

llliquidity of Real Estate. Real estate is not “liquid,” meaning it’s hard to sell. Thus, the Company might
not be able to sell the project as quickly as it would like or on the terms that it would like.
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Property Values Could Decrease. The value of the Company’s real estate could decline, perhaps

significantly. Factors that could cause the value of real estate to decline include, but are not limited to:

Changes in interest rates

Competition from other property

Changes in national or local economic conditions
Changes in zoning

Environmental contamination or liabilities
Changes in local market conditions

Fires, floods, and other casualties

Uninsured losses

Undisclosed defects in property

Incomplete or inaccurate due diligence

Inability to Attract and/or Retain Tenants. The Company will face significant challenges attracting and

retaining qualified tenants. These challenges could include:

Competition from other landlords
Changes in economic conditions could reduce demand
Existing tenants might not renew their leases

The Company might have to make substantial improvements to the property, and/or reduce rent, to
remain competitive

Portions of the property could remain vacant for extended periods

A tenant could default on its obligations, or go bankrupt, causing an interruption in rental income

Risks Associated with Development and Construction. The Company is or will be engaged in development

and construction. Development and construction can be time-consuming and are fraught with risk,

including the risk that projects will be delayed or cost more than budgeted.

Liability for Personal Injury. The Company might be sued for injuries that occur in or outside the project,

e.g., “slip and fall” injuries.
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Risks Common to Companies on the Platform Generally

Reliance on Management. Under our Operating Agreement, Investors will not have the right to
participate in the management of the Company. Instead, Jim Heid will manage all aspects of the Company
and its business. Furthermore, if Mr. Heid or other key personnel of the issuer were to leave the Company
or become unable to work, the Company (and your investment) could suffer substantially. Thus, you
should not invest unless you are comfortable relying on the Company’s management team. You will never
have the right to oust management, no matter what you think of them.

Inability to Sell Your Investment. The law prohibits you from selling your securities (except in certain very
limited circumstances) for one year after you acquire them. Even after that one-year period, a host of
Federal and State securities laws may limit or restrict your ability to sell your securities. Even if you are
permitted to sell, you will likely have difficulty finding a buyer because there will be no established market.
Given these factors, you should be prepared to hold your investment for its full term (in the case of debt
securities) or indefinitely (in the case of equity securities).

We Might Need More Capital. We might need to raise more capital in the future to fund new product
development, expand its operations, buy property and equipment, hire new team members, market its
products and services, pay overhead and general administrative expenses, or a variety of other reasons.
There is no assurance that additional capital will be available when needed, or that it will be available on
terms that are not adverse to your interests as an Investor. If the Company is unable to obtain additional
funding when needed, it could be forced to delay its business plan or even cease operations altogether.

Changes in economic conditions could hurt Our businesses. Factors like global or national economic
recessions, changes in interest rates, changes in credit markets, changes in capital market conditions,
declining employment, decreases in real estate values, changes in tax policy, changes in political
conditions, and wars and other crises, among other factors, hurt businesses generally and could hurt our
business as well. These events are generally unpredictable.

No Registration Under Securities Laws. Our securities will not be registered with the SEC or the securities
regulator of any State. Hence, neither the Company nor the securities will be subject to the same degree
of regulation and scrutiny as if they were registered.

Incomplete Offering Information. Title IIl does not require us to provide you with all the information that
would be required in some other kinds of securities offerings, such as a public offering of shares (for
example, publicly-traded firms must generally provide Investors with quarterly and annual financial
statements that have been audited by an independent accounting firm). Although Title 1l does require
extensive information, it is possible that you would make a different decision if you had more information.

Lack of Ongoing Information. We will be required to provide some information to Investors for at least
one year following the offering. However, this information is far more limited than the information that
would be required of a publicly-reporting Company; and we are allowed to stop providing annual
information in certain circumstances.
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Breaches of Security. It is possible that our systems would be “hacked,” leading to the theft or disclosure
of confidential information you have provided to us. Because techniques used to obtain unauthorized
access or to sabotage systems change frequently and generally are not recognized until they are launched
against a target, we and our vendors may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to implement
adequate preventative measures.

Uninsured Losses. We might not buy enough insurance to guard against all the risks of our business,
whether because it doesn’t know enough about insurance, because we can’t afford adequate insurance,
or some combination of the two. Also, there are some kinds of risks that are simply impossible to insure
against, at least at a reasonable cost. Therefore, the Company could incur an uninsured loss that could
damage our business.

Unreliable Financial Projections. We might provide financial projections reflecting what we believe are
reasonable assumptions concerning the Company and its future. However, the nature of business is that
financial projections are rarely accurate. The actual results of investing in the Company will likely be
different than the projected results, for better or worse.

Limits on Liability of Company Management. Our Operating Agreement limits the liability of
management, making it difficult or impossible for Investors to sue managers successfully if they make
mistakes or conduct themselves improperly. You should assume that you will never be able to sue the
management of the Company, even if they make decisions you believe are stupid or incompetent.

Changes in Laws. Changes in laws or regulations, including but not limited to zoning laws, environmental
laws, tax laws, consumer protection laws, securities laws, antitrust laws, and health care laws, could
adversely affect the Company.

Conflicts of Interest. In many ways your interests and ours will coincide: you and we want the Company
to be as successful as possible. However, our interests might be in conflict in other important areas,
including these:

® You might want the Company to distribute money, while the Company might prefer to reinvest it back
into the business.

e You might wish the Company would be sold so you can realize a profit from your investment, while
management might want to continue operating the business.

e You would like to keep the compensation of managers low, while managers want to make as much as
they can.

e You would like management to devote all their time to this business, while they might own and
manage other businesses as well.

Your Interests Aren’t Represented by Our Lawyers. We have lawyers who represent us. These lawyers
have drafted our Operating Agreement and Investment Agreement, for example. None of these lawyers
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represents you personally. If you want your interests to be represented, you will have to hire your own
lawyer, at your own cost.

Risks Associated with Equity Securities

Equity Comes Last in the Capital Stack. You will be buying “equity” securities in the Company. The holders
of the equity interests stand to profit most if the Company does well but stand last in line to be paid when
the Company dissolves. Everyone — the bank, the holders of debt securities, even ordinary trade creditors
— has the right to be paid first. You might buy equity hoping the Company will be the next Facebook but
face the risk that it will be the next Theranos.

Possible Tax Cost. The Company is a limited liability company and, as such, will be taxed as a partnership,
with the result that its taxable income will “flow through” and be reported on the tax returns of the equity
owners. It is therefore possible that you would be required to report taxable income of the Company on
your personal tax return, and pay tax on it, even if the Company doesn’t distribute any money to you. To
put it differently, your taxable income from a limited liability company is not limited to the distributions
you receive.

Your Interest Might be Diluted: As an equity owner, your interest will be “diluted” immediately, in the
sense that (1) the “book value” of the Company is lower than the price you are paying, and (2) the founder
of the Company, and possibly others, bought their stock at a lower price than you are buying yours. Your
interest could be further “diluted” in the future if the Company sells stock at a lower price than you paid.

Future Investors Might Have Superior Rights: If the Company needs more capital in the future and sells
stock to raise that capital, the new Investors might have rights superior to yours. For example, they might
have the right to be paid before you are, to receive larger distributions, to have a greater voice in
management, or otherwise.

Our Companies will not be Subject to the Corporate Governance Requirements of the National
Securities Exchange: Any Company whose securities are listed on a national stock exchange (for example,
the New York Stock Exchange) is subject to a number of rules about corporate governance that are
intended to protect Investors. For example, the major U.S. stock exchanges require listed companies to
have an audit committee made up entirely of independent members of the board of directors (i.e.,
directors with no material outside relationships with the Company or management), which is responsible
for monitoring the Company’s compliance with the law. Our Company is not required to implement these
and other stockholder protections.

Risks Associated with COVID19.

COVID-19 has so far had a significant negative impact on the economy overall with regards to increased
unemployment, reduced consumer and travel spending, and challenges to hospitality businesses such as
hotels and restaurants. However, recommendations by the National Institute of Health (NIH) and new
consumer behaviors including escaping urban environments, social distancing and creating COVID bubbles
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have increased rural demand both for ownership and retreat opportunities.* 4° The rural redevelopment
plan of the Company has not changed in response to COVID-19 but in fact has been reaffirmed by long
term expected changes in market demand. Because of the unprecedented nature of this 100-year event,
the Company discloses here both positive and negative potentialities that may result.

Negative effects

e Local regulations may restrict or prohibit travel to or from other areas.*
Restaurants and local amenities may be less available to potential renters encouraging them to
stay at their permanent residence. Cultural performances and museums may become unavailable.
People may be less willing to travel by air to remote destinations.
People may be concerned about rental accommodations being fully sanitized before their stay.

e These conditions are subject to change and we don’t know how long these negative effects may

continue.
Positive effects

e Demand for rural real estate rentals has increased and may continue to do so. AirBnB reports a
25% increase in bookings for rural destinations over 2019. This trend resulted in stronger bookings
of The Playhouse and may result in higher nightly rates and more nights booked.*’

e Demand for rural real estate has also increased and may lead to a higher exit sale price for the
Property. Sales are up 14% and pending listings are up 53% compared to last year. The website
theBerkshireedge.com has called it a “buying frenzy” in the Berkshires.*

® As people seek to isolate themselves from urban environments, demand for all types of rural
accommodations has increased.*

e Many more people are working from home and may need more space than available in their
current primary residence. As people spend more time at home, demand for larger properties has
increased and may continue to do so. Demand for amenities outside the property may decrease.

e These conditions are subject to change and we don’t know how long these positive effects may
continue.

Numerous other potential or actual risks could arise as the situation continues to unfold.

“https://www.hackensackmeridianhealth.org/HealthU/2020/08/26/how-to-create-a-covid-bubble-and-why-you-
should-consider-one/

4 https://www.globest.com/2020/07/13/covid-could-cause-real-estate-vacuum-in-big-cities-boom-in-rural-towns/
%6 https://www.mass.gov/info-details/covid-19-travel-order
4Thttps://www.cnbc.com/2020/08/06/rural-airbnb-bookings-are-surging-as-vacationers-look-to-escape-the-
coronavirus.html

8 https://theberkshireedge.com/covid-19-spurs-real-estate-buying-frenzy-in-the-berkshires/

% https://www.cnn.com/2020/08/31/success/leaving-the-city-for-suburbs/index.html
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EXHIBIT D: REG CF INVESTMENT AGREEMENT

This is an Agreement, entered into on , 2020, by and between The Freeman Berkshires,
LLC a Delaware limited liability company (the “Company”) and (“Purchaser”).
Background

Purchaser wishes to purchase an interest in the Company offered through www.smallchange.com (the

”Siﬁ”).

NOW, THEREFORE, acknowledging the receipt of adequate consideration and intending to be legally

bound, the parties hereby agree as follows:

Defined Terms.

Capitalized terms that are not otherwise defined in this Investment Agreement have the meanings given

to them in the Company’s Form C and its attachments, all available at the Site. In this Investment

Agreement, we refer to the Form C as the “Disclosure Document.” We sometimes refer to the Company

using terms like “we” or “us,” and to Purchaser using terms like “you” or “your.”

1. Purchase of LLC Interest.

1.1.

1.2.

In General. Subject to section 2.2 and the other terms and conditions of this Agreement, the
Company hereby agrees to sell to Purchaser, and Purchaser hereby agrees to purchase from the
Company, a limited liability company interest for $ . We refer to your limited
liability company interest as the “LLC Interest.”

Reduction for Oversubscription. If the Company receives subscriptions from qualified Investors
for more than the amount we are trying to raise, we may reduce your subscription and therefore
the amount of your LLC Interest, as explained in the Disclosure Document.

2. Our Right to Reject Investment.

We have the right to reject your subscription for any reason or for no reason, in our sole discretion. If

we reject your subscription, any money you have given us will be returned to you.

3. No Certificate.

You will not receive a paper certificate representing your LLC Interest.

4. Your Promises.

You promise that:

4.1.

Accuracy of Information. All of the information you have given to us at the Site is accurate and
we may rely on it. If any of the information you have given to us changes before we accept your
subscription, you will notify us immediately. If any of the information you have given to us is
inaccurate and we are damaged (harmed) as a result, you will indemnify us, meaning you will
pay any damages.
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4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

4.10.

4.11.

4.12.

4.13.

4.14.

4.15.

Review of Information. You have read all of the information in the Disclosure Document,
including all the exhibits. Without limiting that statement, you have reviewed the Operating
Agreement of the Company and understand its terms, including those dealing with
distributions.

Risks. You understand all of the risks of investing, including the risk that you could lose all of
your money. Without limiting that statement, you have reviewed and understand all of the risks
described in the Disclosure Document.

No Representations. Nobody has made any promises or representations to you, except the
information in the Disclosure Document. Nobody has guaranteed any financial outcome of your
investment.

Opportunity to Ask Questions. You have had the opportunity to ask questions about the
Company and the investment at the Site. All of your questions have been answered to your
satisfaction.

Your Legal Power to Sign and Invest. You have the legal power to sign this Investment
Agreement and purchase the LLC Interest. Your investment will not violate any contract you
have entered into with someone else.

Acting On Your Own Behalf. You are acting on your own behalf in purchasing the LLC Interest,
not on behalf of anyone else.

Investment Purpose. You are purchasing the LLC Interest solely as an investment, not with an
intent to re-sell or “distribute” any part of it.

Knowledge. You have enough knowledge, skill, and experience in business, financial, and
investment matters to evaluate the merits and risks of the investment.

Financial Wherewithal. You can afford this investment, even if you lose your money. You don’t
need this money for your current needs, like rent or utilities.

No Government Approval. You understand that no state or federal authority has reviewed this
Investment Agreement or the LLC Interest or made any finding relating to the value or fairness
of the investment.

Restrictions on Transfer. You understand that the LLC Interest may not be transferrable, and
that securities laws also limit transfer. This means you will probably be required to hold the LLC
Interest indefinitely.

No Advice. We have not provided you with any investment, financial, or tax advice. Instead, we
have advised you to consult with your own legal and financial advisors and tax experts.

Tax Treatment. We have not promised you any particular tax outcome from owning the LLC
Interest.

Past Performance. You understand that even if we have been successful in the past, this doesn’t
mean we will be successful with your LLC Interest.
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4.16. Money Laundering. The money you are investing was not acquired from “money laundering”
or other illegal activities. You will provide us with additional information relating to the source
of the funds if we reasonably believe we are required to request such information by law.

4.17. Additional Documents. You will execute any additional documents we request if we reasonably
believe those documents are necessary or appropriate and explain why.

4.18. Authority. If the Purchaser is an entity (for example, a partnership or corporation), then the
individual signing this Investment Agreement has the legal authority to do so.

Confidentiality.

The information on the Site, including the information in the Disclosure Document, is confidential.
You will not reveal such information to anyone or use such information for your own benefit, except
to purchase the LLC Interest.

Re-Purchase of LLC Interest.

If we decide that you provided us with inaccurate information or have otherwise violated your
obligations, we may (but shall not be required to) repurchase your LLC Interest for an amount equal
to the principal amount outstanding.

Execution of Operating Agreement.

By signing this Agreement, you are also signing the Operating Agreement, just as if you had signed a
paper copy of the Operating Agreement.

Governing Law.

Your relationship with us shall be governed by the Delaware law, without taking into account
principles of conflicts of law.

Arbitration.

9.1. Right to Arbitrate Claims. If any kind of legal claim arises between us, either of us will have the
right to arbitrate the claim, rather than use the courts. There are only three exceptions to this
rule. First, we will not invoke our right to arbitrate a claim you bring in Small Claims Court or an
equivalent court, if any, so long as the claim is pending only in that court. Second, we have the
right to seek an injunction in court if you violate or threaten to violate your obligations. Third,
claims arising under the Operating Agreement will be handled as provided in the Operating
Agreement.

9.2. Place of Arbitration; Rules. All arbitration will be conducted in New York, NY unless we agree
otherwise in writing in a specific case. All arbitration will be conducted before a single arbitrator
in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association.

9.3. Appeal of Award. Within 30 days of a final award by the single arbitrator, you or we may appeal
the award for reconsideration by a three-arbitrator panel. If you or we appeal, the other party
may cross-appeal within 30 days after notice of the appeal. The panel will reconsider all aspects
of the initial award that are appealed, including related findings of fact.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

9.4. Effect of Award. Any award by the individual arbitrator that is not subject to appeal, and any
panel award on appeal, shall be final and binding, except for any appeal right under the Federal
Arbitration Act, and may be entered as a judgment in any court of competent jurisdiction.

9.5. No Class Action Claims. NO ARBITRATION SHALL PROCEED ON A CLASS, REPRESENTATIVE, OR
COLLECTIVE BASIS. No party may join, consolidate, or otherwise bring claims for or on behalf of
two or more individuals or unrelated corporate entities in the same arbitration unless those
persons are parties to a single transaction. An award in arbitration shall determine the rights and
obligations of the named parties only, and only with respect to the claims in arbitration, and shall
not (i) determine the rights, obligations, or interests of anyone other than a named party, or
resolve any claim of anyone other than a named party, or (ii) make an award for the benefit of,
or against, anyone other than a named party. No administrator or arbitrator shall have the power
or authority to waive, modify, or fail to enforce this paragraph, and any attempt to do so, whether
by rule, policy, arbitration decision or otherwise, shall be invalid and unenforceable. Any
challenge to the validity of this paragraph shall be determined exclusively by a court and not by
the administrator or any arbitrator. If this paragraph shall be deemed unenforceable, then any
proceeding in the nature of a class action shall be handled in court, not in arbitration.

Consent to Electronic Delivery.

You agree that we may deliver all notices, tax reports and other documents and information to you
by email or another electronic delivery method we choose. You agree to tell us right away if you
change your email address or home mailing address, so we can send information to the new address.

Notices.

All  notices between wus will be electronic. You will contact us by email at
freemanberkshireslic@sharedestatesfund.com. We will contact you by email at the email address you
used to register at the Site. Either of us may change our email address by notifying the other (by
email). Any notice will be considered to have been received on the day it was sent by email, unless
the recipient can demonstrate that a problem occurred with delivery. You should designate our email
address as a “safe sender” so our emails do not get trapped in your spam filter.

Limitations on Damages.

WE WILL NOT BE LIABLE TO YOU FOR ANY LOST PROFITS OR SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR PUNITIVE
DAMAGES, EVEN IF YOU TELL US YOU MIGHT INCUR THOSE DAMAGES. This means that at most, you
can sue us for the amount of your investment. You can’t sue us for anything else.

Waiver of Jury Rights.

IN ANY DISPUTE WITH US, YOU AGREE TO WAIVE YOUR RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY. This means that
any dispute will be heard by an arbitrator or a judge, not a jury.

Miscellaneous Provisions.

14.1. No Transfer. You may not transfer your rights or obligations.
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14.2.

14.3.

14.4.

14.5.

Right to Legal Fees. If we have a legal dispute with you, the losing party will pay the costs of the
winning party, including reasonable legal fees.

Headings. The headings used in this Investment Agreement (e.g., the word “Headings” in this
paragraph), are used only for convenience and have no legal significance.

No Other Agreements. This Investment Agreement and the documents it refers to are the only
agreements between us.

Electronic Signature. You will sign this Investment Agreement electronically, rather than
physically.

[Signatures on Following Pages]
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SAMPLE SIGNATURE PAGE FOR AN INVESTOR WHO IS AN INDIVIDUAL

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Investment Agreement effective on the date
first written above.

By:

Investor Signature

ACCEPTED: THE FREEMAN BERKSHIRES, LLC.

By its manager: SHARED ESTATES ASSETS FUND 1, LLC

By:

Daniel Dus, Managing Partner of the Manager, Shared Estates Assets Fund GP, LLC
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EXHIBIT E: REG D INVESTMENT AGREEMENT

This is an Agreement, entered into on , 2020, by and between The Freeman
Berkshires, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Company”) and
(“Purchaser”).
Background

Purchaser wishes to purchase an interest in the Company offered through www.smallchange.com

(the “Site”).

NOW, THEREFORE, acknowledging the receipt of adequate consideration and intending to be legally

bound, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1.

Defined Terms.

Capitalized terms that are not otherwise defined in this Investment Agreement have the meanings
given to them in the Company’s disclosure document, available at the Site. In this Investment
Agreement, we refer to the Company’s disclosure document as the “Disclosure Document.” We

sometimes refer to the Company using terms like “we” or “us,” and to Purchaser using terms like
“you” or “your.”

Purchase of LLC Interest.

2.1. In General. Subject to section 2.2 and the other terms and conditions of this Agreement, the
Company hereby agrees to sell to Purchaser, and Purchaser hereby agrees to purchase from the
Company, a limited liability company interest for $ . We refer to your limited
liability company interest as the “LLC Interest.”

2.2. Reduction for Oversubscription. If the Company receives subscriptions from qualified Investors
for more than the amount we are trying to raise, we may reduce your subscription and therefore
the amount of your LLC Interest. We will notify you promptly if this happens.

No Right to Cancel.

You do not have the right to cancel your subscription or change your mind, even if the amount of your
LLC Interest is reduced under section 2.2. Once you sign this Investment Agreement, you are obligated
to purchase the LLC Interest.

Our Right to Reject Investment.

In contrast, we have the right to reject your subscription for any reason or for no reason, in our sole
discretion. If we reject your subscription, any money you have given us will be returned to you.

No Certificate.

You will not receive a paper certificate representing your LLC Interest.
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6. Your Promises.

You promise that:

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

6.9.

Accuracy of Information. All of the information you have given to us at the Site is accurate and
we may rely on it. If any of the information you have given to us changes before we accept
your subscription, you will notify us immediately. If any of the information you have given to
us is inaccurate and we are damaged (harmed) as a result, you will indemnify us, meaning you
will pay any damages.

Review of Information. You have read all of the information in the Disclosure Document,
including all the exhibits. Without limiting that statement, you have reviewed the Operating
Agreement of the Company and understand its terms, including those dealing with
distributions.

Risks. You understand all of the risks of investing, including the risk that you could lose all of
your money. Without limiting that statement, you have reviewed and understand all of the
risks described in the Disclosure Document.

Accredited Investor. At least one of the following two statements is true:
FIRST STATEMENT: You are an individual and either:
(1) Your net worth, excluding your principal residence, is at least $1,000,000; or

(2) Your income has been at least $200,000 for each of the last two years and you expect it
to be at least $200,000 this year; or

(3) The combined income of you and your spouse has been at least $300,000 for each of the
last two years and you expect it to be at least $300,000 this year.

SECOND STATEMENT: You are otherwise an “accredited Investor” within the meaning of 17
CFR §230.501(a).

No Representations. Nobody has made any promises or representations to you, except the
information in the Disclosure Document. Nobody has guaranteed any financial outcome of
your investment.

Opportunity to Ask Questions. You have had the opportunity to ask questions about the
Company and the investment. All of your questions have been answered to your satisfaction.

Your Legal Power to Sign and Invest. You have the legal power to sign this Investment
Agreement and purchase the LLC Interest. Your investment will not violate any contract you
have entered into with someone else.

Acting On Your Own Behalf. You are acting on your own behalf in purchasing the LLC Interest,
not on behalf of anyone else.

Investment Purpose. You are purchasing the LLC Interest solely as an investment, not with an
intent to re-sell or “distribute” any part of it.
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6.10.

6.11.

6.12.

6.13.

6.14.

6.15.

6.16.

6.17.

6.18.

6.19.

Knowledge. You have enough knowledge, skill, and experience in business, financial, and
investment matters to evaluate the merits and risks of the investment.

Financial Wherewithal. You can afford this investment, even if you lose your money. You don’t
need this money for your current needs, like rent or utilities.

No Government Approval. You understand that no state or federal authority has reviewed this
Investment Agreement or the LLC Interest or made any finding relating to the value or fairness
of the investment.

Restrictions on Transfer. You understand that the LLC Interest may not be transferrable, and
that securities laws also limit transfer. This means you will probably be required to hold the
LLC Interest indefinitely.

No Advice. We have not provided you with any investment, financial, or tax advice. Instead,
we have advised you to consult with your own legal and financial advisors and tax experts.

Tax Treatment. We have not promised you any particular tax outcome from owning the LLC
Interest.

Past Performance. You understand that even if we have been successful in the past, this
doesn’t mean we will be successful with your LLC Interest.

Money Laundering. The money you are investing was not acquired from “money laundering”
or other illegal activities. You will provide us with additional information relating to the source
of the funds if we reasonably believe we are required to request such information by law.

Additional Documents. You will execute any additional documents we request if we
reasonably believe those documents are necessary or appropriate and explain why.

Authority. If the Purchaser is an entity (for example, a partnership or corporation), then the
individual signing this Investment Agreement has the legal authority to do so.

7. Confidentiality.

The information on the Site, including the information in the Disclosure Document, is confidential.

You will not reveal such information to anyone or use such information for your own benefit, except

to purchase the LLC Interest.

8. Re-Purchase of LLC Interest.

If we decide that you provided us with inaccurate information or have otherwise violated your

obligations, we may (but shall not be required to) repurchase your LLC Interest for an amount equal

to the principal amount outstanding.

9. Execution of Operating Agreement.

By signing this Agreement, you are also signing the Operating Agreement, just as if you had signed a

paper copy of the Operating Agreement.
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10. Governing Law.

11.

Your relationship with us shall be governed by Delaware law, without taking into account principles

of conflicts of law

Arbitration.

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

Right to Arbitrate Claims. If any kind of legal claim arises between us, either of us will have the
right to arbitrate the claim, rather than use the courts. There are only three exceptions to this
rule. First, we will not invoke our right to arbitrate a claim you bring in Small Claims Court or
an equivalent court, if any, so long as the claim is pending only in that court. Second, we have
the right to seek an injunction in court if you violate or threaten to violate your obligations.
Third, claims arising under the Operating Agreement will be handled as provided in the
Operating Agreement.

Place of Arbitration; Rules. All arbitration will be conducted in New York, NY unless we agree
otherwise in writing in a specific case. All arbitration will be conducted before a single
arbitrator in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association.

Appeal of Award. Within 30 days of a final award by the single arbitrator, you or we may appeal
the award for reconsideration by a three-arbitrator panel. If you or we appeal, the other party
may cross-appeal within 30 days after notice of the appeal. The panel will reconsider all aspects
of the initial award that are appealed, including related findings of fact.

Effect of Award. Any award by the individual arbitrator that is not subject to appeal, and any
panel award on appeal, shall be final and binding, except for any appeal right under the Federal
Arbitration Act, and may be entered as a judgment in any court of competent jurisdiction.

No Class Action Claims. NO ARBITRATION SHALL PROCEED ON A CLASS, REPRESENTATIVE, OR
COLLECTIVE BASIS. No party may join, consolidate, or otherwise bring claims for or on behalf
of two or more individuals or unrelated corporate entities in the same arbitration unless those
persons are parties to a single transaction. An award in arbitration shall determine the rights
and obligations of the named parties only, and only with respect to the claims in arbitration,
and shall not (i) determine the rights, obligations, or interests of anyone other than a named
party, or resolve any claim of anyone other than a named party, or (ii) make an award for the
benefit of, or against, anyone other than a named party. No administrator or arbitrator shall
have the power or authority to waive, modify, or fail to enforce this paragraph, and any
attempt to do so, whether by rule, policy, arbitration decision or otherwise, shall be invalid
and unenforceable. Any challenge to the validity of this paragraph shall be determined
exclusively by a court and not by the administrator or any arbitrator. If this paragraph shall be
deemed unenforceable, then any proceeding in the nature of a class action shall be handled in
court, not in arbitration.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Consent to Electronic Delivery.

You agree that we may deliver all notices, tax reports and other documents and information to you
by email or another electronic delivery method we choose. You agree to tell us right away if you
change your email address or home mailing address, so we can send information to the new address.

Notices.

All  notices between wus will be electronic. You will contact us by email at
freemanberkshireslic@sharedestatesfund.com. We will contact you by email at the email address you
used to register at the Site. Either of us may change our email address by notifying the other (by
email). Any notice will be considered to have been received on the day it was sent by email, unless
the recipient can demonstrate that a problem occurred with delivery. You should designate our email
address as a “safe sender” so our emails do not get trapped in your spam filter.

Limitations on Damages.

WE WILL NOT BE LIABLE TO YOU FOR ANY LOST PROFITS OR SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR PUNITIVE
DAMAGES, EVEN IF YOU TELL US YOU MIGHT INCUR THOSE DAMAGES. This means that at most, you
can sue us for the amount of your investment. You can’t sue us for anything else.

Waiver of Jury Rights.

IN ANY DISPUTE WITH US, YOU AGREE TO WAIVE YOUR RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY. This means that
any dispute will be heard by an arbitrator or a judge, not a jury.

Miscellaneous Provisions.
16.1. No Transfer. You may not transfer your rights or obligations.

16.2. Right to Legal Fees. If we have a legal dispute with you, the losing party will pay the costs of
the winning party, including reasonable legal fees.

16.3. Headings. The headings used in this Investment Agreement (e.g., the word “Headings” in this
paragraph), are used only for convenience and have no legal significance.

16.4. No Other Agreements. This Investment Agreement and the documents it refers to are the
only agreements between us.

16.5. Electronic Signature. You will sign this Investment Agreement electronically, rather than
physically.

[Signatures on Following Pages]
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SAMPLE SIGNATURE PAGE FOR AN INVESTOR WHO IS AN INDIVIDUAL

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Investment Agreement effective on the date
first written above.

By:

Investor Signature

ACCEPTED: THE FREEMAN BERKSHIRES, LLC.

By its manager: SHARED ESTATES ASSETS FUND 1, LLC

By:

Daniel Dus, Managing Partner of the Manager, Shared Estates Assets Fund GP, LLC
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EXHIBIT F: LLC AGREEMENT

This is an Agreement, entered into effective on October 12, 2020, by and among The Freeman Berkshires,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Company”), Shared Estates Asset Fund GP, LLC, a Delaware

limited liability company (the “Sponsor”), Shared Estates Asset Fund 1, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company (the “Manager”) and the persons (the “Investor Members”) who are admitted to the Company

and designated as such by the Manager. Sponsor and the Investor Members are sometimes referred to
as “Members” in this Agreement.

Background

l. Some or all of the Investor Members acquired their interests in the Company through
www.SmallChange.co (the “Site”).

Il. The Members own all of the limited liability company interests of the Company and wish to set forth
their understandings concerning the ownership and operation of the Company in this Agreement, which
they intend to be the “limited liability company agreement” of the Company within the meaning of 6 Del.
C. 18-101(7).

NOW, THEREFORE, acknowledging the receipt of adequate consideration and intending to be legally
bound, the parties agree as follows:

1. ARTICLE ONE: FORMATION OF LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

1.1. Continuation of Limited liability company. The Company has been formed in accordance with
and pursuant to the Delaware Limited liability company Act (the “Act”) for the purpose set for the below.
The rights and obligations of the Members to one another and to third parties shall be governed by the
Act except that, in accordance with 6 Del. C. 18-1101(b), conflicts between provisions of the Act and
provisions in this Agreement shall be resolved in favor of the provisions in this Agreement except where
the provisions of the Act may not be varied by contract as a matter of law.

1.2. Name. The name of the Company shall be “The Freeman Berkshires LLC” and all of its business
shall be conducted under that name or such other name(s) as may be designated by the Manager.

1.3. Purpose. The purpose of the Company shall be to purchase, renovate and operate the estate
located at 46 Bow Wow Rd, Egremont in Massachusetts, as a luxury shared rental property (the “Project”).
In carrying on its business, the Company may enter into contracts, incur indebtedness, sell, lease, or
encumber any or all of its property, engage the services of others, enter into joint ventures, and take any
other actions the Manager deems advisable.

1.4. Fiscal Year. The fiscal and taxable year of the Company shall be the calendar year, or such
other period as the Manager determines.

2. ARTICLE TWO: CONTRIBUTIONS AND LOANS

2.1. Initial Contributions. Sponsor has contributed $390,00 to the capital of the Company in the
form of cash as an Investor Member. Each Investor Member has made a capital contribution to the
Company pursuant to an Investment Agreement executed by such Investor Member. The foregoing capital
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contributions of Sponsor and the Investor Members are referred to as “Capital Contributions.”

2.2. Other Required Contributions. No Member shall have the obligation to contribute any capital
to the Company beyond the Capital Contributions described in section 2.1. Without limitation, no such
Member shall, upon dissolution of the Company or otherwise, be required to restore any deficit in such
Member’s capital account.

2.3. Loans.

2.3.1. In General. Sponsor or its affiliates, may, but shall not be required to, lend money to
the Company in their sole discretion. No other Member may lend money to the Company without the
prior written consent of the Manager. Subject to applicable state laws regarding maximum allowable rates
of interest, loans made by any Member to the Company pursuant to section 2.3.1 (“Member Loans”) shall
bear interest at the higher of (i) 6% per year, or (ii) the minimum rate necessary to avoid “imputed
interest” under section 7872 or other applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”). Such loans shall be payable on demand and shall be evidenced by one or more
promissory notes.

2.3.2. Repayment of Loans. After payment of (i) current and past-due debt service on
liabilities of the Company other than Member Loans, and (ii) all operating expenses of the Company, the
Company shall pay the current and past-due debt service on any outstanding Member Loans before
distributing any amount to any Member pursuant to Article Four. Such loans shall be repaid pro rata,
paying all past-due interest first, then all past-due principal, then all current interest, and then all current
principal.

2.4. Other Provisions on Capital Contributions. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement
or by law:

2.4.1. No Member shall be required to contribute any additional capital to the Company;
2.4.2. No Member may withdraw any part of his capital from the Company;
2.4.3. No Member shall be required to make any loans to the Company;

2.4.4, Loans by a Member to the Company shall not be considered a contribution of capital,
shall not increase the capital account of the lending Member, and shall not result in the adjustment of the
number of Shares owned by a Member, and the repayment of such loans by the Company shall not
decrease the capital accounts of the Members making the loans;

2.4.5. No interest shall be paid on any initial or additional capital contributed to the Company
by any Member;

2.4.6. Under any circumstance requiring a return of all or any portion of a capital contribution,
no Member shall have the right to receive property other than cash; and

2.4.7. No Member shall be liable to any other Member for the return of his or its capital.

2.5. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Any obligation or right of the Members to contribute capital
under the terms of this Agreement does not confer any rights or benefits to or upon any person who is
not a party to this Agreement.
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3. ARTICLE THREE: PERCENTAGE INTERESTS; CAPITAL ACCOUNTS

3.1. Percentage Interests. The limited liability company interests of the Company shall consist of
“Percentage Interests.” Initially, the Percentage Interest of each Member shall be equal to a percentage

equal to the Capital Contribution of such Member divided by the aggregate Capital Contributions of all of
the Members. However, the Manager may adjust the Percentage Interests of the Members (i) to reflect
the addition of additional Investor Members, or (ii) otherwise to carry out the purposes of this Agreement.
The Manager may not, however, adjust the Percentage Interest of any Investor Member relative to
Sponsor or any other Investor Member, except in the case of additional Capital Contributions.

3.2 Capital Accounts. A capital account shall be established and maintained for each Member.
Each Member’s capital account shall initially be credited with the amount of his Capital Contribution.
Thereafter, the capital account of a Member shall be increased by the amount of any additional
contributions of the Member and the amount of income or gain allocated to the Member and decreased
by the amount of any distributions to the Member and the amount of loss or deduction allocated to the
Member, including expenditures of the Company described in section 705(a)(2)(B) of the Code. Unless
otherwise specifically provided herein, the capital accounts of the Members shall be adjusted and
maintained in accordance with Code section 704 and the regulations thereunder.

4. ARTICLE FOUR: DISTRIBUTIONS AND ALLOCATIONS
4.1. Distributions.

4.1.1. In General. Within thirty (30) days after the end of each calendar year, or at such other
more frequent intervals as the Manager shall determine, the Company shall distribute its Available Cash
as follows:

(a) First, the Available Cash shall be distributed to the Investor Members, including the
Sponsor as Investor Member, until they have received their Preferred Return of 8% for the current year.

(b) Second, the balance of the Available Cash, if any, shall be distributed to the Investor
Members, including the Sponsor as Investor Member, until they have received any shortfall in the
Preferred Return for any prior year.

(c) Third, the balance of the Available Cash, if any, shall be distributed to the Investor
Members, including the Sponsor as Investor Member, until they have received a full return of their
Unreturned Investment.

(d) Fourth, the balance of the Available Cash, if any, shall be distributed as follows until
Investor Members, including the Sponsor as Investor Member, have received an amount equal to twice
(200% of) their original investment in total.

(1) 80 % to the Investor Members, including the Sponsor as Investor Member; and
(2) 20% to Sponsor as a promoted interest.

(e) Fifth, the balance of the Available Cash, if any, shall be distributed:
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(1) 60 % to the Investor Members, including the Sponsor as Investor Member; and
(2) 40% to Sponsor as a promoted interest.

4.1.2. Distributions Among Investor Members. Any distributions made to Investor Members
as a group pursuant to section 4.1.1 shall be made among the Investor Members in accordance with their
respective Percentage Interests.

4.1.3. Definitions. The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this section 4.1:

(a) “Available Cash” means the cash of the Company available for distribution to the
Members, in the sole discretion of the Manager, taking into account, among other things, the cash flow
from the operations of the Company and the Project, the net proceeds from the sale or refinancing of the
Project, debt service (including debt service on Member Loans), amounts added to and released from
reserve accounts established by the Manager in its sole discretion, and all of the operating expenses of
the Company.

(b)  “Investor Member” means a Member that has made a Capital Contribution.

(c) “Preferred Return” means an annual, cumulative, compounding return of 8% on the

Unreturned Investment of each Member.

(d)  “Unreturned Investment” means, for each Member, the Capital Contribution of such

Member reduced by any distributions received by such Member pursuant to section 4.1.1(b).

4.1.4. Distributions to Pay Personal Tax Liabilities. In the event that the Company recognizes
net gain or income for any taxable year, the Company shall, taking into account its financial condition and
other commitments, make a good faith effort to distribute to each Member, no later than April 15" of the
following year, an amount equal to the net gain or income allocated to such Member, multiplied by the
highest marginal tax rate for individuals then in effect under section 1 of the Code plus the highest rate
then in effect under applicable state law, if such amount has not already been distributed to such Member
pursuant to this section 4.1. If any Member receives a smaller or larger distribution pursuant to this
section than he would have received had the same aggregate amount been distributed pursuant to
section 4.1, then subsequent distributions shall be adjusted accordingly.

4.1.5. Tax Withholding. To the extent the Company is required to pay over any amount to any
federal, state, local or foreign governmental authority with respect to distributions or allocations to any
Member, the amount withheld shall be deemed to be a distribution in the amount of the withholding to
that Member. If the amount paid over was not withheld from an actual distribution (i) the Company shall
be entitled to withhold such amounts from subsequent distributions, and (ii) if no such subsequent
distributions are anticipated for six (6) months, the Member shall, at the request of the Company,
promptly reimburse the Company for the amount paid over.

4.1.6. Assets Distributed in Kind. If the Company distributes non-cash assets to the Members,
including but not limited to promissory notes, each Member shall receive a pro rata share of such non-
cash assets.

4.1.7. Manner of Distribution. All distributions to the Members will be made as Automated
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Clearing House (ACH) deposits into an account designated by each Member. If a Member does not
authorize the Company to make such ACH distributions into a designated Member account, distributions
to such Member will be made by check and mailed to such Member after deduction by the Company from
each check of a Fifty Dollar ($50) processing fee.

4.1.8. Other Rules Governing Distributions. No distribution prohibited by 6 Del. C. §18-607 or
not specifically authorized under this Agreement shall be made by the Company to any Member in his or
its capacity as a Member. A Member who receives a distribution prohibited by 6 Del. C. §18-607 shall be
liable as provided therein.

4.2. Allocations of Profits and Losses.

4.2.1. General Rule: Allocations Follow Cash. The Company shall seek to allocate its income,
gains, losses, deductions, and expenses (“Tax ltems”) in a manner so that (i) such allocations have
“substantial economic effect” as defined in section 704(b) of the Code and the regulations issued
thereunder (the “Regulations”) and otherwise comply with applicable tax laws; (ii) each Member is
allocated income equal to the sum of (A) the losses he, she, or it is allocated, and (B) the cash profits he,
she, or it receives; and (iii) after taking into account the allocations for each year as well as such factors
as the value of the Company’s assets, the allocations likely to be made to each Member in the future, and
the distributions each Member is likely to receive, the balance of each Member’s capital account at the
time of the liquidation of the Company will be equal to the amount such Member is entitled to receive
pursuant to this Agreement. That is, the allocation of the Company’s Tax Items should, to the extent
reasonably possible, follow the actual and anticipated distributions of cash, in the discretion of the
Manager. In making allocations the Manager shall use reasonable efforts to comply with applicable tax
laws, including without limitation through incorporation of a “qualified income offset,” a “gross income
allocation,” and a “minimum gain chargeback,” as such terms or concepts are specified in the Regulations.
The Manager shall be conclusively deemed to have used reasonable effort if it has sought and obtained
advice from counsel.

4.2.2. Losses and Income Attributable to Member Loans. In the event the Company
recognizes a loss attributable to loans from the Members, then such loss, as well as any income recognized
by the Company as a result of the repayment of such loan (including debt forgiveness income), shall be
allocated to the Member(s) making such loan.

4.2.3. Allocations Relating to Taxable Issuance of Interest. Any income, gain, loss, or
deduction realized as a direct or indirect result of the issuance of an interest in the Company by the
Company to a Member (the “Issuance Items”) shall be allocated among the Members so that, to the extent
possible, the net amount of such Issuance Items, together with all other allocations under this Agreement
to each Member, shall be equal to the net amount that would have been allocated to each such Member
if the Issuance Items had not been realized.

4.2.4. Section 754 Election. The Company may, but shall not be required to, make an election
under section 754 of the Code at the request of any Member. The Company may condition its consent to
make such an election on the agreement of the requesting Member to pay directly or reimburse the
Company for any costs incurred in connection with such election or the calculations required as a result
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of such an election.

4.2.5. Pre-Distribution Adjustment. In the event property of the Company is distributed to
one or more the Members in kind, there shall be allocated to the Members the amount of income, gain
or loss which the Company would have recognized had such property been sold for its fair market value
on the date of the distribution, to the extent such income, gain or loss has not previously been allocated
among the Members. The allocation described in this section is referred to as the “Pre-Distribution

Adjustment.”
5. ARTICLE FIVE: MANAGEMENT

5.1. Management by Manager.

5.1.1. In General. The business and affairs of the Company shall be directed, managed, and
controlled by a single manager (the “Manager”). Sponsor shall serve as the Manager of the Company.

5.1.2. Powers of Manager. The Manager shall have full and complete authority, power and
discretion to manage and control the business, affairs and properties of the Company, to make all
decisions regarding those matters, to execute any contracts or other instruments on behalf of the
Company, and to perform any and all other acts or activities customary or incidental to the management
of the Company’s business.

5.1.3. Examples of Manager’s Authority. Without limiting the grant of authority set forth in
section 5.1.2, the Manager shall have the power to (i) admit new Members on such terms as the Manager
may determine; (ii) engage the services of third parties to perform services; (iii) make all decisions
regarding the Projects and the Company’s interest in the Project Entities; (iv) enter into leases and any
other contracts of any kind; (v) incur indebtedness on behalf of the Company, whether to banks or other
lenders; (vi) determine the timing and amount of distributions; (vii) determine the information to be
provided to the Members; (viii) grant liens and other encumbrances on the Company’s assets; (ix) file and
settle lawsuits on behalf of the Company; (x) file a petition in bankruptcy; (xi) sell or otherwise dispose of
all or substantially all of the Company’s business or assets, including but not limited to the Properties or
the Company’s interest in the Property Companies, in the ordinary course of business or otherwise; (xii)
discontinue the business of the Company or any Property Company; and (xiii) dissolve the Company.

5.2. Resignation. A Manager may resign at any time by giving written notice to all of the Members.
The resignation of a Manager shall take effect upon receipt of notice thereof or at such later time as shall
be specified in such notice; and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation
shall not be necessary to make it effective. The resignation of a Manager shall not affect his rights as a
Member and shall not constitute a withdrawal of a Member.

5.3. Standard of Care. The Manager shall conduct the Company’s business using its business
judgment.
5.4. Appointment of Manager. In the event of the resignation of a Manager, a new Manager shall

be appointed by Members owning a majority of the Percentage Interests.

5.5. Restrictions on Members. Except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement,
Members who are not also the Manager shall not be entitled to participate in the management or control
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of the Company, nor shall any such Member hold himself out as having such authority. Unless authorized
to do so by the Manager, no attorney-in-fact, employee or other agent of the Company shall have any
power or authority to bind the Company in any way, to pledge its credit or to render it liable pecuniarily
for any purpose. No Member shall have any power or authority to bind the Company unless the Member
has been authorized by the Manager in writing to act as an agent of the Company in accordance with the
previous sentence.

5.6. Officers. The Manager may, from time to time, designate one or more persons to serve as
officers of the Company, with such titles, responsibilities, compensation, and terms of office as the
Manager may designate. Any officer may be removed by the Manager with or without cause. The
appointment of an officer shall not in itself create contract rights.

5.7. Time Commitment. The Manager shall devote such time to the business and affairs of the
Company as the Manager may determine in its sole and absolute discretion.

5.8. Compensation of Manager and its Affiliates.

5.8.1. Acquisition Fee. As compensation for its services in organizing the Company, the
Manager shall be entitled to a one-time fee equal to 2% of the purchase price.

5.8.2. Asset Management Fee. Each month, the Manager shall be entitled to an asset
management fee equal to one-twelfth of one percent (1/12)% of the aggregate capital account balances
of the Members on the last day of the previous month.

5.8.3. Fees for Other Services. The Manager may engage itself or its affiliates to perform
services on behalf of the Company, provided that any compensation paid by the Company for such
services shall be (i) fair to the Company, (ii) comparable to the compensation that would be paid to
unrelated parties, and (iii) promptly disclosed to all of the Members.

6. ARTICLE SIX: OTHER BUSINESSES; INDEMNIFICATION; CONFIDENTIALITY

6.1. Other Businesses. Each Member and Manager may engage in any business whatsoever,
including a business that is competitive with the business of the Company, and the other Members shall
have no interest in such businesses and no claims on account of such businesses, whether such claims
arise under the doctrine of “corporate opportunity,” an alleged fiduciary obligation owed to the Company
or its members, or otherwise.

6.2. Exculpation and Indemnification
6.2.1. Exculpation.

(a) Covered Persons. As used in this section 6.2, the term “Covered Person” means the
Manager and its affiliates and the officers, employees, and agents of the Company, acting within the scope
of their authority.

(b) Standard of Care. No Covered Person shall be liable to the Company for any loss,
damage or claim incurred by reason of any action taken or omitted to be taken by such Covered Person
in the good-faith business judgment of such Covered Person, so long as such action or omission does not
constitute fraud or willful misconduct by such Covered Person.
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(c) Good Faith Reliance. A Covered Person shall be fully protected in relying in good faith
upon the records of the Company and upon such information, opinions, reports, or statements (including
financial statements and information) of the following persons: (i) another Covered Person; (ii) any
attorney, independent accountant, appraiser, or other expert or professional employed or engaged by or
on behalf of the Company; or (iii) any other person selected in good faith by or on behalf of the Company,
in each case as to matters that such relying Covered Person reasonably believes to be within such other
person’s professional or expert competence. The preceding sentence shall in no way limit any person's
right to rely on information to the extent provided in the Act.

6.2.2. Liabilities and Duties of Covered Persons.

(a) Limitation of Liability. This Agreement is not intended to, and does not, create or
impose any fiduciary duty on any Covered Person. Furthermore, each Member and the Company hereby
waives any and all fiduciary duties that, absent such waiver, may be implied by applicable law, and in
doing so, acknowledges and agrees that the duties and obligation of each Covered Person to each other
and to the Company are only as expressly set forth in this Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement,
to the extent that they restrict the duties and liabilities of a Covered Person otherwise existing at law or
in equity, are agreed by the Members to replace such other duties and liabilities of such Covered Person.

(b) Duties. Whenever a Covered Person is permitted or required to make a decision, the
Covered Person shall be entitled to consider only such interests and factors as such Covered Person
desires, including its own interests, and shall have no duty or obligation to give any consideration to any
interest of or factors affecting the Company or any other person. Whenever in this Agreement a Covered
Person is permitted or required to make a decision in such Covered Person’s “good faith,” the Covered
Person shall act under such express standard and shall not be subject to any other or different standard
imposed by this Agreement or any other applicable law.

6.2.3. Indemnification.

(a) Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by the Act, as the same now exists or
may hereafter be amended, substituted or replaced (but, in the case of any such amendment, substitution
or replacement only to the extent that such amendment, substitution or replacement permits the
Company to provide broader indemnification rights than the Act permitted the Company to provide prior
to such amendment, substitution or replacement), the Company shall indemnify, hold harmless, defend,
pay and reimburse any Covered Person against any and all losses, claims, damages, judgments, fines or
liabilities, including reasonable legal fees or other expenses incurred in investigating or defending against
such losses, claims, damages, judgments, fines or liabilities, and any amounts expended in settlement of
any claims (collectively, “Losses”) to which such Covered Person may become subject by reason of any act

or omission or alleged act or omission performed or omitted to be performed by such Covered Person on
behalf of the Company in connection with the business of the Company; provided, that (i) such Covered
Person acted in good faith and in a manner believed by such Covered Person to be in, or not opposed to,
the best interests of the Company and, with respect to any criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause
to believe his conduct was unlawful, and (ii) such Covered Person's conduct did not constitute fraud or
willful misconduct, in either case as determined by a final, non-appealable order of a court of competent
jurisdiction. In connection with the foregoing, the termination of any action, suit or proceeding by
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judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of
itself, create a presumption that the Covered Person did not act in good faith or, with respect to any
criminal proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that such Covered Person’s conduct was unlawful,
or that the Covered Person's conduct constituted fraud or willful misconduct.

(b) Reimbursement. The Company shall promptly reimburse (and/or advance to the extent
reasonably required) each Covered Person for reasonable legal or other expenses (as incurred) of such
Covered Person in connection with investigating, preparing to defend or defending any claim, lawsuit or
other proceeding relating to any Losses for which such Covered Person may be indemnified pursuant to
this section 6.2.3; provided, that if it is finally judicially determined that such Covered Person is not
entitled to the indemnification provided by this section 6.2.3, then such Covered Person shall promptly
reimburse the Company for any reimbursed or advanced expenses.

(c) Entitlement to Indemnity. The indemnification provided by this section 6.2.3 shall not
be deemed exclusive of any other rights to indemnification to which those seeking indemnification may
be entitled under any agreement or otherwise. The provisions of this section 6.2.3 shall continue to afford
protection to each Covered Person regardless whether such Covered Person remains in the position or
capacity pursuant to which such Covered Person became entitled to indemnification under this section
6.2.3 and shall inure to the benefit of the executors, administrators, and legal representative of such
Covered Person.

(d) Insurance. To the extent available on commercially reasonable terms, the Company
may purchase, at its expense, insurance to cover Losses covered by the foregoing indemnification
provisions and to otherwise cover Losses for any breach or alleged breach by any Covered Person of such
Covered Person’s duties in such amount and with such deductibles as the Manager may determine;
provided, that the failure to obtain such insurance shall not affect the right to indemnification of any
Covered Person under the indemnification provisions contained herein, including the right to be
reimbursed or advanced expenses or otherwise indemnified for Losses hereunder. If any Covered Person
recovers any amounts in respect of any Losses from any insurance coverage, then such Covered Person
shall, to the extent that such recovery is duplicative, reimburse the Company for any amounts previously
paid to such Covered Person by the Company in respect of such Losses.

(e)  Funding of Indemnification Obligation. Any indemnification by the Company pursuant
to this section 6.2.3 shall be provided out of and to the extent of Company assets only, and no Member
shall have personal liability on account thereof or shall be required to make additional capital
contributions to help satisfy such indemnification obligation.

(f)  Savings Clause. If this section 6.2.3 or any portion hereof shall be invalidated on any
ground by any court of competent jurisdiction, then the Company shall nevertheless indemnify and hold
harmless each Covered Person pursuant to this section 6.2.3 to the fullest extent permitted by any
applicable portion of this section 6.3 that shall not have been invalidated and to the fullest extent
permitted by applicable law.

6.2.4. Amendment. The provisions of this section 6.2 shall be a contract between the
Company, on the one hand, and each Covered Person who served in such capacity at any time while this
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section is in effect, on the other hand, pursuant to which the Company and each such Covered Person
intend to be legally bound. No amendment, modification or repeal of this section that adversely affects
the rights of a Covered Person to indemnification for Losses incurred or relating to a state of facts existing
prior to such amendment, modification or repeal shall apply in such a way as to eliminate or reduce such
Covered Person’s entitlement to indemnification for such Losses without the Covered Person’s prior
written consent.

6.2.5. Survival. The provisions of this section 6.2 shall survive the dissolution, liquidation,
winding up, and termination of the Company.

6.3. Confidentiality. For as long as he, she, or it owns an interest in the Company and at all
times thereafter, no Investor Member shall divulge to any person or entity, or use for his or its own benefit
or the benefit of any person, any information of the Company of a confidential or proprietary nature,
including, but not limited to (i) financial information; (ii) designs, drawings, plans, and specifications; (iii)
the business methods, systems, or practices used by the Company; and (iii) the identity of the Company’s
Members, customers, or suppliers. The foregoing shall not apply to information that is in the public
domain or that an Investor Member is required to disclose by legal process.

7. ARTICLE SEVEN: BANK ACCOUNTS; BOOKS OF ACCOUNT; REPORTS

7.1. Bank Accounts. Funds of the Company may be deposited in accounts at banks or other
institutions selected by the Manager. Withdrawals from any such account or accounts shall be made in
the Company’s name upon the signature of such persons as the Manager may designate. Funds in any
such account shall not be commingled with the funds of any Member.

7.2. Books and Records of Account. The Company shall keep at its principal offices books and
records of account of the Company which shall reflect a full and accurate record of each transaction of
the Company.

7.3. Annual Financial Statements and Reports. Within a reasonable period after the close of each
fiscal year, the Company shall furnish to each Member with respect to such fiscal year (i) a statement
showing in reasonable detail the computation of the amount distributed under section 4.1, (ii) a balance
sheet of the Company, (iii) a statement of income and expenses, and (iv) such information from the
Company’s annual information return as is necessary for the Members to prepare their Federal, state and
local income tax returns. The financial statements of the Company need not be audited by an independent
certified public accounting firm unless the Manager so elects.

7.4. Reports Required by Law. If the Company has engaged in an offering exempt from
registration under section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act of 1933, then the Company shall provide all Investor
Members (not just those who acquired their Percentage Interests in a particular offering) with information
as required by 17 CFR 227.202, in addition to the information required by section 7.3.

7.5. Right of Inspection.

7.5.1. In General. If a Member wishes additional information or to inspect the books and
records of the Company for a bona fide purpose, the following procedure shall be followed: (i) such
Member shall notify the Manager, setting forth in reasonable detail the information requested and the
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reason for the request; (ii) within sixty (60) days after such a request, the Manager shall respond to the
request by either providing the information requested or scheduling a date (not more than 90 days after
the initial request) for the Member to inspect the Company’s records; (iii) any inspection of the Company’s
records shall be at the sole cost and expense of the requesting Member; and (iv) the requesting Member
shall reimburse the Company for any reasonable costs incurred by the Company in responding to the
Member’s request and making information available to the Member.

7.5.2. Bona Fide Purpose. The Manager shall not be required to respond to a request for
information or to inspect the books and records of the Company if the Manager believes such request is
made to harass the Company or the Manager, to seek confidential information about the Company, or for
any other purpose other than a bona fide purpose.

7.5.3. Representative. An inspection of the Company’s books and records may be conducted
by an authorized representative of a Member, provided such authorized representative is an attorney or
a licensed certified public accountant and is reasonably satisfactory to the Manager.

7.5.4. Restrictions. The following restrictions shall apply to any request for information or to
inspect the books and records of the Company:

(a) No Member shall have a right to a list of the Investor Members or any information
regarding the Investor Members.

(b) Before providing additional information or allowing a Member to inspect the
Company’s records, the Manager may require such Member to execute a confidentiality agreement
satisfactory to the Manager.

(c) No Member shall have the right to any trade secrets of the Company or any other
information the Manager deems highly sensitive and confidential.

(d) No Member may review the books and records of the Company more than once during
any twelve (12) month period.

(e) Any review of the Company’s books and records shall be scheduled in a manner to
minimize disruption to the Company’s business.

(f) A representative of the Company may be present at any inspection of the Company’s
books and records.

(g) If more than one Member has asked to review the Company’s books and records, the
Manager may require the requesting Members to consolidate their request and appoint a single
representative to conduct such review on behalf of all requested Members.

(h) The Manager may impose additional reasonable restrictions for the purpose of
protecting the Company and the Members.

7.6. Tax Matters.

7.6.1. Designation. The Manager shall be designated as the “tax matters partner” (as defined
in Code Section 6231 before it was amended by the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2015 (“BBA”)) (the “Tax
Matters Partner”) and, for tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2018, the “Company representative”
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(the “Company Representative”) as provided in Code section 6223(a) (as amended by the BBA). Any

expenses incurred by the Manager in carrying out its responsibilities and duties as Tax Matters Partner or
Company Representative shall be an expense of the Company.

7.6.2. Examinations and Audits. The Tax Matters Partner and Company Representative are
authorized to represent the Company in connection with all examinations of the affairs of the Company
by any taxing authority, including any resulting administrative and judicial proceedings, and to expend
funds of the Company for professional services and costs associated therewith. Each Member agrees to
cooperate with the Tax Matters Partner and Company Representative and to do or refrain from doing any
or all things reasonably requested by the Tax Matters Partner or Company Representative with respect to
the conduct of examinations by taxing authorities and any resulting proceedings. Each Partner agrees that
any action taken by the Tax Matters Partner or Company Representative in connection with audits of the
Company shall be binding upon such Partners and that such Member shall not independently act with
respect to tax audits or tax litigation affecting the Company. The Tax Matters Partner and Company
Representative shall have sole discretion to determine whether the Company (either on its own behalf or
on behalf of the Partners) will contest or continue to contest any tax deficiencies assessed or proposed to
be assessed by any taxing authority.

7.6.3. Elections and Procedures. In the event of an audit of the Company that is subject to the
Company audit procedures enacted under section 1101 of the BBA (the “BBA Procedures”), the Company
Representative, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to make any and all elections and to take any
actions that are available to be made or taken by the Company Representative or the Company under the
BBA Procedures (including any election under Code section 6226 as amended by the BBA). If an election
under Code section 6226(a) (as amended by the BBA) is made, the Company shall furnish to each Member
for the year under audit a statement of the Member’s share of any adjustment set forth in the notice of
final Company adjustment, and each Partner shall take such adjustment into account as required under
Code section 6226(b) (as amended by the BBA).

7.6.4. Tax Returns and Tax Deficiencies. Each Member agrees that such Member shall not
treat any Company item inconsistently on such Member’s federal, state, foreign or other income tax
return with the treatment of the item on the Company’s return. Any deficiency for taxes imposed on any
Member (including penalties, additions to tax or interest imposed with respect to such taxes and any tax
deficiency imposed pursuant to Code section 6226 as amended by the BBA) will be paid by such Member
and if required to be paid (and actually paid) by the Company, will be recoverable from such Member.

7.6.5. Tax Returns. The Manager shall cause to be prepared and timely filed all tax returns
required to be filed by or for the Company.

8. ARTICLE EIGHT: TRANSFERS OF SHARES
8.1. Voluntary Transfers.

8.1.1. Generally. No Investor Member shall sell, transfer, assign or encumber all or any
portion of his or its Shares, with or without consideration, without the prior written consent of the
Manager, which may be withheld in the sole discretion of the Manager. In the event a Member proposes
to transfer all or portion of his or its Shares, the Manager may impose reasonable conditions including but
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not limited to: (i) the transferee shall execute a counterpart of this Agreement; (ii) the transferor shall
provide the Company with an opinion of counsel, satisfactory in form and substance to the Company’s
counsel, stating that the transfer is exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 and other
applicable securities laws; and (iii) the transferor and transferee shall together reimburse the Company
for any reasonable expenses they incur in connection with the transfer or encumbrance, including
attorneys’ fees.

8.1.2. Prohibited Transfers. No transfer of Shares shall be permitted if, in the judgment of the
Manager, such transfer would (i) cause the Company to be treated as a publicly traded partnership as
defined in Section 7704 of the Code, (ii) result in “benefit plan Investors” (as such term is defined in
regulations issued by the Treasury Department) holding, in the aggregate, Twenty Five Percent (25%) or
more of the value of any class of equity interests in the Company, or (iii) together with other transfers
within the preceding twelve (12) months, result in the termination of the Company under section 708 of
the Code.

8.1.3. First Right of Refusal.

(a) In General. In the event an Investor Member (the “Selling Member”) receives an
offer from a third party to acquire all or a portion of his, her, or its Percentage Interest (the “Transfer
Interest”), then he, she, or it shall notify the Sponsor, specifying the Percentage Interest to be purchased,

the purchase price, the approximate closing date, the form of consideration, and such other terms and
conditions of the proposed transaction that have been agreed with the proposed purchaser (the “Sales
Notice”). Within thirty (30) days after receipt of the Sales Notice the Sponsor shall notify the Selling
Member whether the Sponsor (or a person designated by the Sponsor) elects to purchase the entire
Transfer Interest on the terms set forth in the Sales Notice.

(b) Special Rules. The following rules shall apply for purposes of this section:

(1) If the Sponsor elects not to purchase the Transfer Interest, or fails to respond to
the Sales Notice within the thirty (30) day period described above, the Selling Member may proceed with
the sale to the proposed purchaser, subject to section 8.1.1.

(2) If the Sponsor elects to purchase the Transfer Interest, it shall do so within thirty
(30) days.

(3) If the Sponsor elects not to purchase the Transfer Interest, or fails to respond to
the Sales Notice within the thirty (30) day period described above, and the Selling Member and the
purchaser subsequently agree to a reduction of the purchase price, a change in the consideration from
cash or readily tradeable securities to deferred payment obligations or non-tradeable securities, or any
other material change to the terms set forth in the Sales Notice, such agreement between the Selling
Member and the purchaser shall be treated as a new offer and shall again be subject to this section.

(4) If the Sponsor elects to purchase the Transfer Interest in accordance with this
section, such election shall have the same binding effect as the then-current agreement between the
Selling Member and the proposed purchaser. Thus, for example, if the Selling Member and the purchaser
have entered into a non-binding letter of intent but have not entered into a binding definitive agreement,
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the election of the Sponsor shall have the effect of a non-binding letter of intent with the Selling Member.
Conversely, if the Selling Member and the purchaser have entered into a binding definitive agreement,
the election of the Sponsor shall have the effect of a binding definitive agreement. If the Selling Member
and the Sponsor are deemed by this subsection to have entered into only a non-binding letter of intent,
neither shall be bound to consummate a transaction if they are unable to agree to the terms of a binding
agreement.

8.1.4. Admission of Transferee. Any permitted transferee of Shares shall be admitted to the
Company as a Member on the date agreed by the transferor, the transferee, and the Manager.

8.1.5. Exempt Transfers. The following transactions shall be exempt from the provisions of
section 8.1:

(a) Atransferto or for the benefit of any spouse, child or grandchild of an Investor Member,
or to a trust for their exclusive benefit;

(b)  Any transfer pursuant to an effective registration statement filed by the Company
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended; and

(c) The sale of all or substantially all of the interests of the Company (including pursuant to
a merger or consolidation);

shall remain subject to this Agreement, (ii) the transferee shall, as a condition to such transfer, deliver to
the Company a written instrument confirming that such transferee shall be bound by all of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, and (iii) the transferred Shares shall not thereafter be transferred further
in reliance on section 8.1.5(a).

8.1.6. Application to Certain Entities. In the case of an Investor Member that is a Special
Purpose Entity, the restrictions set forth in section 8.1 shall apply to indirect transfers of interests in the
Company by transfers of interests in such entity (whether by transfer of an existing interest or the issuance
of new interests), as well as to direct transfers. A “Special Purpose Entity” means (i) an entity formed or

availed of principally for the purpose of acquiring or holding an interest in the Company, and (ii) any entity
if the purchase price of its interest in the Company represents at least seventy percent (70%) of its capital.

8.1.7. Other Transfers Void. Transfers in contravention of this section shall be null, void and
of no force or effect whatsoever, and the Members agree that any such transfer may and should be
enjoined.

8.2. Death, Insolvency, Etc. Neither the death, disability, bankruptcy, or insolvency of a Member,
nor the occurrence of any other voluntary or involuntary event with respect to a Member, shall give the
Company or any Member the right to purchase such Member’s Shares, nor give the Member himself (or
his heirs, assigns, or representatives) the right to sell such Shares to the Company or any other Member.
Instead, such Member or his heirs, assigns, or legal representatives shall remain a Member subject to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement.

8.3. Incorporation. If the Manager determines that the business of the Company should be
conducted in a corporation rather than in a limited liability company, whether for tax or other reasons,
each Member shall cooperate in transferring the business to a newly-formed corporation and shall
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execute such agreements as the Manager may reasonably determine are necessary or appropriate,
consistent with the terms of this Agreement. In such event each Member shall receive stock in the newly-
formed corporation equivalent to his or its Shares.

8.4. Drag-Along Right. In the event the Manager approves a sale or other disposition of all of the
interests in the Company, then, upon notice of the sale or other disposition, each Member shall execute
such documents or instruments as may be requested by the Manager to effectuate such sale or other
disposition and shall otherwise cooperate with the Manager. The following rules shall apply to any such
sale or other disposition: (i) each Investor Member shall represent that he, she, or it owns his or its Shares
free and clear of all liens and other encumbrances, that he, she, or it has the power to enter into the
transaction, and whether he, she, or it is a U.S. person, but shall not be required to make any other
representations or warranties; (ii) each Investor Member shall grant to the Manager a power of attorney
to act on behalf of such Investor Member in connection with such sale or other disposition; and (iii) each
Investor Member shall receive, as consideration for such sale or other disposition, the same amount he,
she, or it would have received had all or substantially all of the assets of the Company been sold and the
net proceeds distributed in liquidation of the Company.

8.5. Waiver of Appraisal Rights. Each Member hereby waives any contractual appraisal rights such
Member may otherwise have pursuant to 6 Del. C. §18-210 or otherwise, as well as any “dissenter’s
rights.”

8.6. Withdrawal. An Investor Member may withdraw from the Company by giving at least ninety
(90) day’s notice to the Manager. The withdrawing Investor Member shall be entitled to no distributions
or payments from Company on account of his withdrawal, nor shall he be indemnified against liabilities
of Company. For purposes of this section, an Investor Member who transfers his Shares pursuant to (i) a
transfer permitted under section 8.1, or (ii) an involuntary transfer by operation of law, shall not be
treated as thereby withdrawing from Company.

9. ARTICLE NINE: DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION

9.1. Dissolution. The Company shall be dissolved only upon (i) the determination of the Manager
to dissolve, or (ii) the entry of a judicial decree of dissolution. Dissolution shall be effective on the date
designated by the Manager, but the Company shall not terminate until liquidation of the Company has
been completed in accordance with the provisions of section 9.2.

9.2. Liquidation.

9.2.1. Generally. If the Company is dissolved, the Company’s assets shall be liquidated, and
no further business shall be conducted by the Company except for such action as shall be necessary to
wind-up its affairs and distribute its assets to the Members pursuant to the provisions of this Article Nine.
Upon such dissolution, the Manager shall have full authority to wind-up the affairs of the Company and
to make final distribution as provided herein.

9.2.2. Distribution of Assets. After liquidation of the Company, the assets of the Company
shall be distributed as set forth in Article Four.

9.2.3. Distributions In Kind. The assets of the Company shall be liquidated as promptly as

64



possible so as to permit distributions in cash, but such liquidation shall be made in an orderly manner so
as to avoid undue losses attendant upon liquidation. In the event that in the Manager’ opinion complete
liquidation of the assets of the Company within a reasonable period of time proves impractical, assets of
the Company other than cash may be distributed to the Members in kind but only after all cash and cash-
equivalents have first been distributed and after the Pre-Distribution Adjustment.

9.2.4. Statement of Account. Each Member shall be furnished with a statement prepared by
the Company’s accountants, which shall set forth the assets and liabilities of the Company as of the date
of complete liquidation, and the capital account of each Member immediately prior to any distribution in
liquidation.

10. ARTICLE TEN: POWER OF ATTORNEY

10.1. In General. The Manager shall at all times during the term of the Company have a special and
limited power of attorney as the attorney-in-fact for each Investor Member, with power and authority to
act in the name and on behalf of each such Investor Member, to execute, acknowledge, and swear to in
the execution, acknowledgement and filing of documents which are not inconsistent with the provisions
of this Agreement and which may include, by way of illustration but not by limitation, the following:

10.1.1. This Agreement and any amendment of this Agreement authorized under section 11.1;

10.1.2.  Any other instrument or document that may be required to be filed by the Company
under the laws of any state or by any governmental agency or which the Manager shall deem it advisable
to file;

10.1.3.  Any instrument or document that may be required to affect the continuation of the
Company, the admission of new Members, or the dissolution and termination of the Company; and

10.1.4. Any and all other instruments as the Manager may deem necessary or desirable to
effect the purposes of this Agreement and carry out fully its provisions.

10.2. Terms of Power of Attorney. The special and limited power of attorney of the Manager
(i) is a special power of attorney coupled with the interest of the Manager in the Company, and its assets,
is irrevocable, shall survive the death, incapacity, termination or dissolution of the granting Investor
Member, and is limited to those matters herein set forth; (ii) may be exercised by the Manger by an
through one or more of the officers of the Manager for each of the Investor Members by the signature of
the Manager acting as attorney-in-fact for all of the Investor Members, together with a list of all Investor
Members executing such instrument by their attorney-in-fact or by such other method as may be required
or requested in connection with the recording or filing of any instrument or other document so executed;
and (iii) shall survive an assignment by an Investor Member of all or any portion of his, her or its
Percentage Interest except that, where the assignee of the Percentage Interest owned by the Investor
Member has been approved by the Manager for admission to the Company, the special power of attorney
shall survive such assignment for the sole purpose of enabling the Manager to execute, acknowledge and
file any instrument or document necessary to effect such substitution.

10.3. Notice to Investor Members. The Manager shall promptly furnish to each Investor Member
a copy of any amendment to this Agreement executed by the Manager pursuant to a power of attorney
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from such Investor Member.
11. ARTICLE ELEVEN: MISCELLANEOUS
11.1. Amendments.

11.1.1. Amendments by Manager. The Manager may amend this Agreement without the
consent of the Investor Members, including, without limitation, to (i) correct typographical mistakes; (ii)
reflect the admission of additional Members; and (iii) comply with applicable law.

11.1.2. Limitation. Notwithstanding section 11.1.1, without the consent of each affected
Investor Member, the Manager may not adopt any amendment that would (i) amend this section 11.1.2,
(ii) require any Investor Member to make additional Capital Contributions, (iii) impose personal liability
on any Investor Member, (iv) change an Investor Member’s share of distributions relative to other
Members who are Investor Members on the date hereof, or (v) give Sponsor itself a superior right to
distributions vis-a-vis the Investor Members than is currently provided in Article Four.

11.2. Waivers. No delay in the exercise of any right shall be deemed a waiver thereof, nor shall the
waiver of a right or remedy in a particular instance constitute a waiver of such right or remedy generally.

11.3. Assignment by Sponsor. Sponsor may assign its Percentage Interest and its interest in this
Agreement to any other entity controlled by or under common control with Sponsor.

11.4. Notices. Any notice or document required or permitted to be given under this Agreement
may be given by a party or by its legal counsel and shall be deemed to be given by electronic mail with
transmission acknowledgment, to the principal business address of the Company, if to the Company or
the Manager, to the email address of an Investor Member provided by such Investor Member, or such
other address or addresses as the parties may designate from time to time by notice satisfactory under
this section.

11.5. Electronic Delivery. Each Member hereby agrees that all communications with the Company,
including all tax forms, shall be via electronic delivery.

11.6. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the internal laws of Delaware without
giving effect to the principles of conflicts of laws. Each Member hereby (i) consents to the personal
jurisdiction of the Delaware courts or the Federal courts located in Delaware, (ii) agrees that all disputes
arising from this Agreement shall be prosecuted in such courts, (iii) agrees that any such court shall have
in personam jurisdiction over such Member, (iv) consents to service of process by notice sent by regular
mail to the address set forth on Schedule A and/or by any means authorized by Delaware law, and (v) if
such Member is not otherwise subject to service of process in Delaware, agrees to appoint and maintain
an agent in Delaware to accept service, and to notify the Company of the name and address of such agent.

11.7. Waiver of Jury Trial. Each Member acknowledges and agrees that any controversy that may
arise under this Agreement is likely to involve complicated and difficult issues and, therefore, each
Member irrevocably and unconditionally waives any right it may have to a trial by jury in respect of any
legal action arising out of or relating to this Agreement.

11.8. Signature in Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall
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be deemed to be a fully-executed original.

11.9. Signature by Facsimile or Email. An original signature transmitted by facsimile or email shall
be deemed to be original for purposes of this Agreement.

11.10. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, this
Agreement is made for the sole benefit of the parties. No other persons shall have any rights or remedies
by reason of this Agreement against any of the parties or shall be considered to be third party beneficiaries
of this Agreement in any way.

11.11. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the respective heirs, legal
representatives and permitted assigns of each party, and shall be binding upon the heirs, legal
representatives, successors and assigns of each party.

11.12. Titles and Captions. All article, section and paragraph titles and captions contained in this
Agreement are for convenience only and are not deemed a part of the context hereof.

11.13. Pronouns and Plurals. All pronouns and any variations thereof are deemed to refer to the
masculine, feminine, neuter, singular or plural as the identity of the person or persons may require.

11.14. Execution by Investor Members. It is anticipated that this Agreement will be executed by
Investor Members through the execution of a separate Investment Agreement.

11.15. Days. Any period of days mandated under this Agreement shall be determined by reference
to calendar days, not business days, except that any payments, notices, or other performance falling due
on a Saturday, Sunday, or federal government holiday shall be considered timely if paid, given, or
performed on the next succeeding business day.

11.16. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among the parties with
respect to its subject matter and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.
THE FREEMAN BERKSHIRES, LLC

By: Shared Estate Asset Fund 1, LLC, As Manager

By /s/ Daniel Dus

Daniel Dus, Managing Partner of Shared
Estate Asset Fund GP, LLC, Manager
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EXHIBIT G: SUMMARY OF THE LLC AGREEMENT

Overview

The following summarizes some of the most important provisions of the Company’s Limited liability
company Agreement, or “LLC Agreement.” This summary is qualified in its entirety by the actual LLC
Agreement, which is attached to this Form C.

Formation and Ownership
The Company was formed in Delaware pursuant to the Delaware Limited liability company Act.

Initially, the Company will be owned only by the Manager and by the Investors. In the future, if more
capital is required, the Manager could admit additional owners.

In this summary, the owners of the Company are referred to as “Members.”
Management

The Company and its business will be managed by the Manager, which has complete discretion over all
aspects of the Company’s business. For example, the Manager may (i) admit new Members to the
Company; (i) sell or refinance the project; (iii) change the name or characteristics of the project; (iv)
determine the timing and amount of distributions; and (v) determine the information to be provided to
the Members.

Obligation to Contribute Capital

After an Investor pays for his, her, or its Investor Shares, the Investor will not be required to make any
further contributions to the Company. However, if an Investor or other Member has received a
distribution from the Company wrongfully or by mistake, the Investor might have to pay it back.

Personal Liability
No Investor will be personally liable for any of the debts or obligations of the Company.
Distributions

Distributions from the Company will be made in the manner described in disclosure items §227.201(m) —
Terms of the Securities.

If additional Members are admitted to the Company in the future, they might have rights to distributions
that are superior to the rights of Investors.

Transfers

No Member may transfer his, her, or its Investor Shares without the consent of the Manager. The only
exceptions are for certain transfers to family members.

If a Member wants to sell his, her, or its Investor Shares, they must first be offered to the Manager.
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Death, Disability, Etc.

If a Member should die or become incapacitated, he, her, or its successors will continue to own the
Investor Shares.

Fees to Manager and Affiliates

The Manager and its affiliates will be entitled to certain fees and distributions described in disclosure item
§227.201(r) — Transactions Between the Company and “Insiders”.

“Drag-Along” Right

If the Manager wants to sell the Company’s business, it may effect the transaction as a sale of the
Company’s assets or as a sale of all the interests in the Company. In the latter case, Investors will be
required to sell their Investor Shares as directed by the Manager, receiving the same amount they would
have received had the transaction been structured as a sale of assets.

Exculpation and Indemnification

The LLC Agreement seeks to protect the Manager from legal claims made by Members to the maximum
extent permitted by law. For example, it provides that the Manager (i) is not subject to any fiduciary
obligations to the Members; (ii) will not be liable for any act or omission that does not constitute fraud or
willful misconduct; and (iii) will be indemnified against most claims arising from its position as the
Manager of the Company.

Rights to Information

Each year, the Company will provide the Members with (i) a statement showing in reasonable detail the
computation of the amount distributed to the Members; (ii) a balance sheet of the Company; (iii) a
statement of the Company’s income and expenses; and (iv) information for Members to prepare their
income tax returns. A Member’s right to see additional information or inspect the books and records of
the Company is limited by the LLC Agreement.

Power of Attorney

Each Member grants to the Manager a limited power of attorney to execute documents relating to the
Company.

Electronic Delivery

All documents, including all tax-related documents, will be transmitted by the Company to the Members
via electronic delivery.

Distributions to Pay Tax Liability

The Company will generally be treated as a “pass-through entity” for Federal and State tax purposes. This
means that the income of the Company, if any, will be reported on the personal tax returns of the
Members. For any year in which the Company reports taxable income or gains, it will try to distribute at
least enough money for the Members to pay their associated tax liabilities.
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Amendment

The Manager has broad discretion to amend the Operating Agreement without the consent of Members,
including amendments to correct typographical errors; to reflect the admission of additional Members;
to change the Company’s business plan; and to comply with applicable law. However, without the consent
of each affected Member, the Manager may not adopt any amendment that would: (i) require a Member
to make additional capital contributions; (ii) impose personal liability on any Member; (iii) change a
Member’s share of distributions relative to other Members; or (iv) change a Member’s share of
distributions relative to the Manager.
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EXHIBIT H: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADvYUSTING
ENTRIES

1352 Pittsburgh Road ~ Valencia, PA 16059  ;: 724-898-2370  f 724-898-4537 adjustingentries.com

Independent Accountant’s Review Report
The Freeman Berkshires, LLC

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of The Freeman Berkshires, LLC which
comprise the Balance Sheet—tax basis as October 15, 2020, and the related statements of Profit
and Loss—tax basis, and Statement of Cash Flows—tax basis as of October 15, 2020, and the related
notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to the
partners’ financial data and making inquiries of partnership management. A review is substantially
less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the
financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. We are aware that
this report is being used by The Freeman Berkshires, LLC as part of their offering disclosure.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the basis of accounting the Partnership uses for income tax purposes; this
includes determining that the basis of accounting the company uses for income tax purposes is an
acceptable basis for the preparation of financial statements in the circumstances. Management is
also responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on
Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services
Committee of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require us to
perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of
any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in
accordance with the basis of accounting the Partnership uses for income tax purposes. We believe
that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant’s Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with the basis of
accounting the Partnership uses for income tax purposes.

ADVANCED SOLUTIONS in bookkeeping, payroll and tases since 1990
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Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting the Partnership
uses for income tax purposes, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Partnership uses the cash basis of
accounting for income tax purposes. Our conclusion is not modified with respect to this matter.

X fponid, o

Denise Raidna
Adjusting Entries
Valencia PA
October 19, 2020
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The Freeman Berkshires, LLC

Income Statement - Tax Basis
As of October 15, 2020

(Unaudited)
INCOME $0.00
TOTAL INCOME $0.00
EXPENSES $0.00
TOTAL EXPENSES $0.00

NET INCOME $0.00
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The Freeman Berkshires, LLC
Balance Sheet - Tax Basis

As of October 15, 2020
(Unaudited)
ASSETS
Current Assets $0.00
Fixed Assets $0.00
Other Assets $0.00
TOTAL ASSETS $0.00

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Laibilities
Current Liabilities $0.00
Long-term Liabilitieis $0.00
Total Liabilities $0.00
Equity
Opening balance $0.00
Captial Contributions $0.00
Net Income S0.00
Total Equity $0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIEIS AND EQUITY $0.00
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The Freeman Berkshires, LLC

Statement of Cash Flows - Tax Basis
As of October 15, 2020

(Unaudited)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile to Net Cash
Net Cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Cash provided by investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Cash provided by financing activities
NET CASH FOR PERIOD

CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD

CASH AT END OF PERIOD
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$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00




EXHIBIT |I: FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

Overview
The following summarizes some of the Federal income tax consequences of acquiring an LLC Interest. This
summary is based on the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”), regulations issued by the Internal Revenue
Service (“Regulations”), and administrative rulings and court decisions, all as they exist today. The tax
laws, and therefore the Federal income tax consequences of acquiring an LLC Interest, could change in
the future.

This is only a summary, applicable to a generic Investor. Your personal situation could differ. We
encourage you to consult with your own tax advisor before investing.

Classification as a Partnership
The Company will be treated as a partnership for Federal income tax purposes. If the Company were
treated as a corporation and not as a partnership, the operating profit or gain on sale of the project would
generally be subject to two levels of Federal income taxation. This would substantially reduce the
economic return to Investors.

Federal Income Taxation of the Company and its Owners

Because it is treated as a partnership, the Company itself will not be subject to Federal income taxes.
Instead, each Investor will be required to report on his, her, or its personal Federal income tax return his,
her, or its distributive share of the Company’s income, gains, losses, deductions and credits for the taxable
year, whether or not actual distributions of cash or other property are made. Each Investor’s distributive
share of such items will be determined in accordance with the LLC Agreement.

Deduction of Losses

Each Investor may deduct his, her, or its allocable share of the Company’s losses, if any, subject to the
basis limitations of Code §704(d), the “at risk” rules of Code §465, and the “passive activity loss” rules of
Code §469. Unused losses generally may be carried forward indefinitely. The use of tax losses generated
by the Company against other income may not provide a material benefit to Investors who do not have
taxable passive income from other passive activities.

20% Deduction for Pass-Through Entities

Because the Company will be treated as a partnership for Federal income tax purposes, Investors might
be entitled to deduct up to 20% of the amount of taxable income and gains allocated to them by the
Company. Investors should consult with their personal tax advisors concerning the availability of this
deduction in their personal tax circumstances.

Tax Basis

Code §704(d) limits an Investor’s loss to his, her, or its tax “basis” in his, her, or its Interest. An Investor’s
tax basis will initially equal his, her, or its capital contribution (i.e., the purchase price for the Interest).
Thereafter, the Investor’s basis generally will be increased by further capital contributions made by the
Investor, his, her, or its allocable share of the Company’s taxable and tax-exempt income, and his, her, or
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its share of certain liabilities of the Company. The Investor’s basis generally will be decreased by the
amount of any distributions he, she, or it receives, his, her, or its allocable share of the Company’s losses
and deductions, and any decrease in his, her, or its share of the Company’s liabilities.

Limitations of Losses to Amounts at Risk

In the case of certain taxpayers, Code §465 limits the deductibility of losses from certain activities to the
amount the taxpayer has “at risk” in the activities. An Investor subject to these rules will not be permitted
to deduct his, her, or its allocable share of the Company’s losses to the extent the losses exceed the
amount the Investor is considered to have at risk in the Company. If an Investor’s at-risk amount should
fall below zero, he, she, or it would generally be required to “recapture” such amount by reporting
additional income. An Investor generally will be considered at risk to the extent of his, her, or its cash
contribution (i.e., the purchase price for the Interest), his, her, or its basis in other contributed property,
and his, her, or its personal liability for repayments of borrowed amounts. The Investor’s amount at risk
will generally be increased by further contributions and his, her, or its allocable share of the Company’s
income, and decreased by distributions he, she, or it receives and his, her, or its allocable share of the
Company’s losses. With respect to amounts borrowed for investment in the Company, an Investor will not
be considered to be at risk even if he, she, or it is personally liable for repayment if the borrowing was
from a person who has certain interests in the Company other than an interest as a creditor. In all events,
an Investor will not be treated as at risk to the extent his, her, or its investment is protected against loss
through guarantees, stop-loss agreements or other similar arrangements.

Limitations on Losses from Passive Activities

In the case of certain taxpayers, Code §469 generally provides for a disallowance of any loss attributable
to “passive activities” to the extent the aggregate losses from all such passive activities exceed the
aggregate income of the taxpayer from such passive activities. Losses that are disallowed under these
rules for a given tax year may be carried forward to future years to be offset against passive activity
income in such future years. Furthermore, upon the disposition of a taxpayer’s entire interest in any
passive activity, if all gain or loss realized on such disposition is recognized, and such disposition is not to
a related party, any loss from such activity that was not previously allowed as a deduction and any loss
from the activity for the current year is allowable as a deduction in such year, first against income or gain
from the passive activity for the taxable year of disposition, including any gain recognized on the
disposition, next against net income or gain for the taxable year from all passive activities and, finally,
against any other income or gain.

The Company will be treated as a passive activity to Investors. Hence, Investors generally will not be
permitted to deduct their losses from the Company except to the extent they have income from other
passive activities. Similarly, tax credits arising from passive activity will be available only to offset tax from
passive activity. However, all such losses, to the extent previously disallowed, will generally be deductible
in the year an Investor disposes of his, her, or its Investor Shares in a taxable transaction.
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Limitation on Capital Losses

An Investor who is an individual may deduct only $3,000 of net capital losses every year (that is, capital
losses that exceed capital gains). Net capital losses in excess of $3,000 per year may generally be carried
forward indefinitely.

Limitation on Investment Interest

Interest that is characterized as “investment interest” generally may be deducted only against investment
income. Investment interest would include, for example, interest paid by an Investor on a loan that was
incurred to purchase LLC Shares and interest paid by the Company to finance investments, while
investment income would include dividends and interest but would not generally include long term capital
gain. Thus, it is possible that an Investor would not be entitled to deduct all of his, her, or its investment
interest. Any investment interest that could not be deducted may generally be carried forward
indefinitely.

Treatment of Liabilities

When the Company borrows money or otherwise incurs indebtedness, the amount of the liability will be
allocated among all of the Investors in the manner prescribed by the Regulations. In general (but not for
purposes of the “at risk” rules) each Investor will be treated as having contributed cash to the Company
equal to his, her, or its allocable share of all such liabilities. Conversely, when an Investor’s share of
liabilities is decreased (for example, if the Company repays loans or an Investor disposes of his, her, or its
Interest) then the Investor will be treated as having received a distribution of cash equal to the amount
of such decrease.

Allocations of Profits and Losses

The profits and losses of the Company will be allocated among all the owners of the Company, including
Investors, in the manner described in the LLC Agreement. In general, it is intended that profits and losses
will be allocated in a manner that corresponds with the distributions each Investor is entitled to receive;
i.e., so that tax allocations follow cash distributions. Such allocations will be respected by the IRS if they
have “substantial economic effect” within the meaning of Code §704(b). If they do not, the IRS could re-
allocate items of income and loss.

Sale or Exchange of Investor Shares

In general, the sale of Investor Shares by an Investor will be treated as a sale of a capital asset. The amount
of gain from such a sale generally will be equal to the difference between the selling price and the
Investor’s basis. Such gain will generally be eligible for favorable long-term capital gain treatment if the
Investor Shares have been held for at least 12 months. However, to the extent any of the sale proceeds
are attributable to substantially appreciated inventory items or unrealized receivables, as defined in Code
§751, the Investor will recognize ordinary income.

If, as a result of a sale of a Investor Shares, an Investor’s share of liabilities is reduced, such Investor could
recognize a tax liability greater than the amount of cash received in the sale.
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Code §6050K requires any Investor who transfers Investor Shares at a time when the Company has
unrealized receivables or substantially appreciated inventory items to report such transfer to the
Company. For these purposes, “unrealized receivables” includes depreciation subject to “recapture”
under Code §1245 or Code §1250. If so notified, the Company must report the identity of the transferor
and transferee to the IRS, together with other information described in the Regulations. Failure by an
Investor to report a transfer covered by this provision may result in penalties.

A gift of Investor Shares will be taxable if the donor-Investor’s share of liabilities is greater than his, her,
or its adjusted basis in the gifted Investor Shares. The gift could also give rise to Federal gift tax liability. If
the gift is made as a charitable contribution, the donor-Investor is likely to realize gain greater than would
be realized with respect to a non-charitable gift, since in general the Investor will not be able to offset the
entire amount of his, her, or its adjusted basis in the donated Investor Shares against the amount
considered to be realized as a result of the gift (i.e., the Company’s debt).

Transfer of Investor Shares by reason of death would not in general be a taxable event, although it is
possible that the IRS would treat such a transfer as taxable where the deceased Investor’s share of
liabilities exceeds his or her pre-death basis in his or her Investor Shares. The deceased Investor’s
transferee will get a basis in the Investor Shares equal to their fair market value at death (or, in certain
circumstances, on the date six (6) months after death), increased by the transferee’s share of liabilities.
For this purpose, the fair market value will not include the decedent’s share of Company taxable income
to the extent attributable to the pre-death portion of the taxable year.

Treatment of Distributions

Upon the receipt of any distribution or cash or other property, including a distribution in liquidation of
the Company, an Investor generally will recognize income only to the extent that the amount of cash and
marketable securities he, she, or it receives exceeds his, her, or its basis in the Investor Shares. Any such
gain generally will be considered as gain from the sale of the Investor Shares.

Alternative Minimum Tax

The Code imposes an alternative minimum tax on individuals and corporations. Certain items of the
Company’s income and loss may be required to be taken into account in determining the alternative
minimum tax liability of Investors.

Taxable Year

The Company will report its income and losses using the calendar year. In general, each Investor will report
his, her, or its share of income and losses for the taxable year of such Investor that includes December
31st; i.e., the calendar year for individuals and other Investors using the calendar year.

Section 754 Election

The Company may, but is not required to, make an election under Code §754 on the sale of Investor Shares
or the death of an Investor. The result of such an election is to increase or decrease the tax basis of the
Company'’s assets for purposes of allocations made to the buyer or beneficiary that would, in turn, affect
depreciation deductions and gain or loss on sale, among other items.
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Unrelated Business Taxable Income for Tax-Exempt Investors

A church, charity, pension fund, or other entity that is otherwise exempt from Federal income tax must
nevertheless pay tax on “unrelated business taxable income.” In general, interest and gains from the sale
of property (other than inventory) are not treated as unrelated business taxable income. However,
interest and gains from property that was acquired in whole or in part with the proceeds of indebtedness
may be treated as unrelated business taxable income. Because the Company intends to borrow money to
acquire the project and may borrow additional funds in the future, some of the income of the Company
could be subject to tax in the hands of tax-exempt entities.

Tax Returns and Tax Information; Audits; Penalties; Interest

The Company will furnish each Investor with the information needed to be included in his, her, or its
Federal income tax returns. Each Investor is personally responsible for preparing and filing all personal tax
returns that may be required as a result of his, her, or its purchase (or ownership) of Investor Shares. The
Company’s tax returns will be prepared by accountants selected by the Company.

If the Company’s tax returns are audited, it is possible that substantial legal and accounting fees will have
to be paid to substantiate the Company’s reporting position on its returns and such fees would reduce
the cash otherwise distributable to Investors. Such an audit may also result in adjustments to the
Company’s tax returns, which adjustments, in turn, would require an adjustment to each Investor’s
personal tax return. An audit of the Company’s tax returns may also result in an audit of non-Company
items on each Investor’s personal tax returns, which could result in adjustments to such items. The
Company is not obligated to contest adjustments proposed by the IRS.

Each Investor must either report Company items on his, her, or its tax return consistent with the treatment
on the Company’s information return or file a statement with his, her, or its tax return identifying and
explaining the inconsistency. Otherwise the IRS may treat such inconsistency as a computational error
and re-compute and assess the tax without the usual procedural protections applicable to Federal income
tax deficiency proceedings.

The Manager will be treated as the “tax matters partner” of the Company and will generally control all
proceedings with the IRS.

The Code imposes interest and a variety of potential penalties on underpayments of tax.
Other Tax Consequences

The foregoing discussion addresses only selected issues involving Federal income taxes, and does not
address the impact of other taxes on an investment in the Company, including Federal estate, gift, or
generation-skipping taxes, or State and local income or inheritance taxes. Prospective Investors should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to such matters.
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EXHIBIT J: BACKGROUND CHECKS

crowdcheck badactorreport

1. Name of covered person: The Freeman Berkshires, LLC
2. Date: September 29, 2020

This Bad Actor Report summarizes the results obtained from a search of court, regulatory,

and agency records that cover each of the enumerated events that would trigger

disqualification from offering securities under the claimed exemption from registration, or

require disclosure.

Summary: Our investigation revealed that The Freeman Berkshires, LLC is likely: Not disqualified

Criminal Convictions: Felony or misdemeanor conviction in connection with the purchase or sale
of a security, involving the making of any false filing with the SEC, or arising out of the conduct of the
business of an underwriter, broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, investment adviser, or paid
solicitor of purchasers of securities.

Details: No information indicating a criminal conviction was found.

Civil Orders, Judgments, and Decrees: Order, judgment or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction that restrains or enjoins a the covered person from engaging or continuing to engage in
any conduct or practice in connection with the purchase or sale of a security, involving the making
of any false filing with the SEC, or arising out of the conduct of the business of an underwriter,
broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, investment adviser, or paid solicitor of purchasers of
securities.

Details: No information indicating a civil order, judgment, or decree was found.

Regulatory Authority Orders: Final order of a state securities commission, state banking regulator,
state insurance commission, federal banking regulator, the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading
Commission, or the National Credit Union Administration that bars the covered person from
association with any entity regulated by such commission, authority, agency, or officer; engaging in
the business of securities, insurance or banking; engaging in savings association or credit union
activities; or that constitutes a final order based on a violation of any law or regulation that
prohibits fraudulent, manipulative or deceptive conduct.

Details: No information indicating a regulatory order was found.

SEC Regulated Person Orders: Order of the SEC entered pursuant to Section 15(b) or 15B(c) of the
Securities Exchange Act, or Section 203(e) or (f) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 that
suspends or revokes the covered person's registration as a broker, dealer, municipal securities
dealer or investment adviser; places limitations on the activities, functions or operations of the
covered person; or bars the covered person from being associated with any entity or participating in
the offering of any penny stock.

Details: No information indicating a regulated person order was found.
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crowdcheck

SEC Cease-and-Desist Orders: Order of the SEC that orders the covered person to cease and desist
from committing or causing a violation of or future violation of any scienter-based anti-fraud
provision of the federal securities laws; or Section 5 of the Securities Act.

Details: No information indicating a SEC cease-and-desist order was found.

Self-Regulatory Organization Orders: Suspension or expulsion from membership in, or
suspension or bar from association with a member of, a registered national securities exchange ora
registered national or affiliated securities association for any act or omission to act constituting
conduct inconsistent with just and equitable principals of trade.

Details: No information indicating a self-regulatory organization order was found.

SEC Stop Orders: Participation in any registration statement or Regulation A offering statements
filed with the SEC that was the subject of a refusal order, stop order, or order suspending the
Regulation A exemption.

Details: No information indicating a SEC stop order was found.

USPO Orders: United States Postal Service false representation order, or any temporary restraining
order or preliminary injunction with respect to conduct alleged by the United States Postal Service
to constitute a scheme or device for obtaining money or property through the mail by means of false
representations.

Details: No information indicating a USPO order was found.

Other Information: Results for searches covering a Social Security Number trace, nationwide
arrests, federal and county criminal records, sex offender registry, other civil litigation, bankruptcy
records, and international watch lists. This information does not impact the ability to undertake any
particular securities offering.

Details: No derogatory other information was found.

OO0 Q0

Important information: Bad Actor Report by CrowdCheck is provided as a tool to help securities

issuers and intermediaries establish that they have conducted "reasonable care” to discover
whether any covered persons involved in the offering trigger any of the "Bad Actor”

disqualifications that prevent the issuer from conducting certain securities offerings or require
disclosure. While the search conducted by CrowdCheck is robust, CrowdCheck does not guarantee
that the search will identify all disqualifying events. A more complete search would only be
possible with expensive in-person investigation, and would be affected by the locations in which
the subject person had lived. Additionally, false positives may occur due to similarity in names of
individuals that will require further efforts on the part of the issuer and intermediary. CrowdCheck
only checks persons that are identified to it as "covered persons" and is not responsible for
establishing whether any given individual is a "covered person.” The results of the Bad Actor Report
do not constitute legal advice or investment advice of any kind. By using the Bad Actor Report by
CrowdCheck, you agree to hold CrowdCheck harmless from any and all claims, responsibility, or
liability that may result from the information provided by Bad Actor Report.
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crowdcheck badactorreport

1. Name of covered person: Daniel Dus
2. Date: September 29,2020

This Bad Actor Report summarizes the results obtained from a search of court, regulatory,

and agency records that cover each of the enumerated events that would trigger

disqualification from offering securities under the claimed exemption from registration, or

require disclosure.

Summary: Our investigation revealed that Daniel Dus is likely: Not disqualified

Criminal Convictions: Felony or misdemeanor conviction in connection with the purchase or sale
of a security, invelving the making of any false filing with the SEC, or arising out of the conduct of the
business of an underwriter, broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, investment adviser, or paid
solicitor of purchasers of securities.

Details: No information indicating a criminal conviction was found.

Civil Orders, Judgments, and Decrees: Order, judgment or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction that restrains or enjoins a the covered person from engaging or continuing to engage in
any conduct or practice in connection with the purchase or sale of a security, involving the making
of any false filing with the SEC, or arising out of the conduct of the business of an underwriter,
broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, investment adviser, or paid solicitor of purchasers of
securities.

Details: No information indicating a civil order, judgment, or decree was found.

Regulatory Authority Orders: Final order of a state securities commission, state banking regulator,
state insurance commission, federal banking regulator, the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading
Commission, or the National Credit Union Administration that bars the covered person from
association with any entity regulated by such commission, authority, agency, or officer; engaging in
the business of securities, insurance or banking; engaging in savings association or credit union
activities; or that constitutes a final order based on a violation of any law or regulation that
prohibits fraudulent, manipulative or deceptive conduct.

Details: No information indicating a regulatory order was found.

SEC Regulated Person Orders: Order of the SEC entered pursuant to Section 15(b) or 15B(c) of the
Securities Exchange Act, or Section 203(e) or (f) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 that
suspends or revokes the covered person’s registration as a broker, dealer, municipal securities
dealer or investment adviser; places limitations on the activities, functions or operations of the
covered person; or bars the covered person from being associated with any entity or participating in
the offering of any penny stock.

Details: No information indicating a regulated person order was found.
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SEC Cease-and-Desist Orders: Order of the SEC that orders the covered person to cease and desist
from committing or causing a violation of or future violation of any scienter-based anti-fraud
provision of the federal securities laws; or Section 5 of the Securities Act.

Details: No information indicating a SEC cease-and-desist order was found.

Self-Regulatory Organization Orders: Suspension or expulsion from membership in, or
suspension or bar from association with a member of, a registered national securities exchange ora
registered national or affiliated securities association for any act or omission to act constituting
conduct inconsistent with just and equitable principals of trade.

Details: No information indicating a self-regulatory organization order was found.

SEC Stop Orders: Participation in any registration statement or Regulation A offering statements
filed with the SEC that was the subject of a refusal order, stop order, or order suspending the
Regulation A exemption.

Details: No information indicating a SEC stop order was found.

USPO Orders: United States Postal Service false representation order, or any temporary restraining
order or preliminary injunction with respect to conduct alleged by the United States Postal Service
to constitute a scheme or device for obtaining money or property through the mail by means of false
representations.

Details: No information indicating a USPO order was found.

Other Information: Results for searches covering a Social Security Number trace, nationwide
arrests, federal and county criminal records, sex offender registry, other civil litigation, bankruptcy
records, and international watch lists. This information does not impact the ability to undertake any
particular securities offering,

OO0 Q0

Details: No derogatory other information was found.

Important information: Bad Actor Report by CrowdCheck is provided as a tool to help securities
issuers and intermediaries establish that they have conducted "reasonable care” to discover
whether any covered persons involved in the offering trigger any of the "Bad Actor"
disqualifications that prevent the issuer from conducting certain securities offerings or require
disclosure. While the search conducted by CrowdCheck is robust, CrowdCheck does not guarantee
that the search will identify all disqualifying events. A more complete search would only be
possible with expensive in-person investigation, and would be affected by the locations in which
the subject person had lived. Additionally, false positives may occur due to similarity in names of
individuals that will require further efforts on the part of the issuer and intermediary. CrowdCheck
only checks persons that are identified to it as "covered persons” and is not responsible for
establishing whether any given individual is a "covered person.” The results of the Bad Actor Report
do not constitute legal advice or investment advice of any kind. By using the Bad Actor Report by
CrowdCheck, you agree to hold CrowdCheck harmless from any and all claims, responsibility, or
liability that may result from the information provided by Bad Actor Report.
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crowdcheck badactorreport

1. Name of covered person: Shared Estates Asset Fund 1, LLC
2. Date: September 29, 2020

This Bad Actor Report summarizes the results obtained from a search of court, regulatory,

and agency records that cover each of the enumerated events that would trigger

disqualification from offering securities under the claimed exemption from registration, or

require disclosure.

Summary: Our investigation revealed that Shared Estates Asset Fund 1, LLC is likely: Not
disqualified

Criminal Convictions: Felony or misdemeanor conviction in connection with the purchase or sale
of a security, involving the making of any false filing with the SEC, or arising out of the conduct of the
business of an underwriter, broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, investment adviser, or paid
solicitor of purchasers of securities.

Details: No information indicating a criminal conviction was found.

Civil Orders, Judgments, and Decrees: Order, judgment or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction that restrains or enjoins a the covered person from engaging or continuing to engage in
any conduct or practice in connection with the purchase or sale of a security, involving the making
of any false filing with the SEC, or arising out of the conduct of the business of an underwriter,
broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, investment adviser, or paid solicitor of purchasers of
securities.

Details: No information indicating a civil order, judgment, or decree was found.

Regulatory Authority Orders: Final order of a state securities commission, state banking regulator,
state insurance commission, federal banking regulator, the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading
Commission, or the National Credit Union Administration that bars the covered person from
association with any entity regulated by such commission, authority, agency, or officer; engaging in
the business of securities, insurance or banking; engaging in savings association or credit union
activities; or that constitutes a final order based on a violation of any law or regulation that
prohibits fraudulent, manipulative or deceptive conduct.

Details: No information indicating a regulatory order was found.

SEC Regulated Person Orders: Order of the SEC entered pursuant to Section 15(b) or 15B(c) of the
Securities Exchange Act, or Section 203(e) or (f) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 that
suspends or revokes the covered person's registration as a broker, dealer, municipal securities
dealer or investment adviser; places limitations on the activities, functions or operations of the
covered person; or bars the covered person from being associated with any entity or participating in
the offering of any penny stock.

Details: No information indicating a regulated person order was found.
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SEC Cease-and-Desist Orders: Order of the SEC that orders the covered person to cease and desist
from committing or causing a violation of or future violation of any scienter-based anti-fraud
provision of the federal securities laws; or Section 5 of the Securities Act.

Details: No information indicating a SEC cease-and-desist order was found.

Self-Regulatory Organization Orders: Suspension or expulsion from membership in, or
suspension or bar from association with a member of, a registered national securities exchange or a
registered national or affiliated securities association for any act or omission to act constituting
conduct inconsistent with just and equitable principals of trade.

Details: No information indicating a self-regulatory organization order was found.

SEC Stop Orders: Participation in any registration statement or Regulation A offering statements
filed with the SEC that was the subject of a refusal order, stop order, or order suspending the
Regulation A exemption.

Details: No information indicating a SEC stop order was found.

USPO Orders: United States Postal Service false representation order, or any temporary restraining
order or preliminary injunction with respect to conduct alleged by the United States Postal Service
to constitute a scheme or device for obtaining money or property through the mail by means of false
representations.

Details: No information indicating a USPO order was found.

Other Information: Results for searches covering a Social Security Number trace, nationwide
arrests, federal and county criminal records, sex offender registry, other civil litigation, bankruptcy
records, and international watch lists. This information does not impact the ability to undertake any
particular securities offering.

Details: No derogatory other information was found.
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Important information: Bad Actor Report by CrowdCheck is provided as a tool to help securities

issuers and intermediaries establish that they have conducted "reasonable care" to discover
whether any covered persons involved in the offering trigger any of the "Bad Actor”

disqualifications that prevent the issuer from conducting certain securities offerings or require
disclosure. While the search conducted by CrowdCheck is robust, CrowdCheck does not guarantee
that the search will identify all disqualifying events. A more complete search would only be
possible with expensive in-person investigation, and would be affected by the locations in which
the subject person had lived. Additionally, false positives may occur due to similarity in names of
individuals that will require further efforts on the part of the issuer and intermediary. CrowdCheck
only checks persons that are identified to it as “covered persons” and is not responsible for
establishing whether any given individual is a “covered person.” The results of the Bad Actor Report
do not constitute legal advice or investment advice of any kind. By using the Bad Actor Report by
CrowdCheck, you agree to hold CrowdCheck harmless from any and all claims, responsibility, or
liability that may result from the information provided by Bad Actor Report.
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ExHIBIT K: A CASE STUDY
The Playhouse

The managers bought a 7,000 square foot rehabilitation project in 2014: 850 Summer Street in Lee,
Massachusetts. It's great room is pictured above. The property was originally built by George
Westinghouse on his 222 acre Berkshires estate in the 1880s as The PLAYHOUSE, a theater for his children.
His was the first residence in the world powered by AC electricity. Westinghouse named the estate Erksine
Park, after his wife’s maiden name. Visitors to the estate have included President McKinley, Nikola Tesla
and Lord Kelvin. The Westinghouse family spent their later years on this estate, which was later purchased
by the Vanderbilts. The Vanderbilts tore down Westinghouse’s mansion and built their own, which still
stands today — they called it Holmwood.

The Fund Managers rehabilitated the property, including structural upgrades, new electrical, plumbing
and roof as well as window, door and fixture replacement. With 15 beds and convertibles, it can readily
sleep 20 or more. The main floor of The Playhouse has 30-foot vaulted ceilings with lofts at either end,
and large windowed cupolas. The lower level includes a game room with fireplace, library, second kitchen,
and a large yoga studio. The property was finished in high-end modern minimalist style and embellished
with fine art. For a three-dimensional model of the redeveloped property follow the link in the footnote.*®
Its many amenities include lakefront and beach gear, tennis courts and other outdoor games. It has rented
extensively to all forms of group travel, booking well in advance an average of over 200 nights per year.
Weekend vacancy rate has been <1%.

50 https://my.matterport.com/show/?m=tw5PXLSn3xV&mls=1
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The Playhouse is listed for rental on HomeAway/VRBO, where it quickly achieved the #1 ranking in the
Berkshires out of 565 properties, and #12 in the U.S. in the Estates category.
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Revenues from the Playhouse over the prior three years:

2016: $105,679 (first four months on market)
2017: $268,281 (includes deposits)

2018: $249,213 (includes deposits)

2019: $142,857 (net of deposits)

2020 year-to-date: $188,067 (net of deposits)
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